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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION 
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

ACI Airports Council International 

ACOC Airline Cargo Operators Committee 

ACSA Airports Company of South Africa 

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa 

AOPA Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association 

ASGISA Accelerated and Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa 

ASLC Air Services Licencing Council 

ATC Air Traffic Control 

ATNS Air Traffic and Navigation Services 

BAC Basic Ambulance Course 

BBBEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

BPO Business Process Outsourcing 

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate 

CCMA Commission for Conciliation Mediation and Arbitration 

CCTV Close Circuit Television 

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CS Company Secretary 

DoT National Department of Transport 

EXCO Executive Committee 

FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

FIN Finance 

FMPPI Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information 

FTK Freight Tones Kilometres 

GA General Aviation 

GAAL Gateway Airport Authority Limited 

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GNSS Global Navigation Satellite System 

HR Human Resources 

IAS International Accounting Standard 

IASC International Air Services Council 

IATA International Air Transport Association 

!CAO International Civil Aviation Organization 

IDP Integrated Development Plan 

IDZ Industrial Development Zone 

ILS Instrument Landing System 

IP SAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards 

ITP Integrated Transport Plan 

LDOT Limpopo Department of Transport 



LDP Limpopo Development Plan 

LED Local Economic Development 

LEDET Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism 

MEC Member of Executive Council 

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

NATMAP National Transport Master Plan 

NDPW National Department of Public Works 

NEPAD New Partnership for Africa's Development 

NFLS National Freight Logistics Strategy 

NTPF National Transport Planning Forum 

OPS Operations 

ORTIA OR Tambo International Airport 

PAA Public Audit Act 

PFMA Public Finance Management Act 

PIA Polokwane International Airport 

PPP Public Private Partnership 

RDP Reconstruction and Development Programme 

RPK Revenue Passenger Kilometres 

SAA South African Airways 

SA CAA/CAA South African Civil Aviation Authority 

SADC Southern African Development Community 

SAT South African Tourism 

SATRA South African Telecommunication Regulatory Authority 

SCM Supply Chain Management 

SEZ Special Economic Zone 

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises 

SOE State Owned Enterprise 

StatsSA Statistics South Africa 

TETA Transport, Education Training Authority 

TFCA Trans Frontier Conservation Area 

TR Treasury Regulations 

UNWTO United Nation World Tourism Organization 

USA United States of America 



3. FOREWORD BY THE MEC FOR TRANSPORT, SAFETY, SECURITY AND

LIAISON

Honourable Mapula Mokaba Phukwana, MPL 

M.E.C of Transoort Safetv. Securitv and Liaisons

The 2014/15 Gateway Airport Authority Limited (GAAL) annual report presents a giant 

progress in the number of passenger and aircraft movement processed by the airport in 

the history of Limpopo province. Since the establishment of GAAL as an institution 

responsible for the management of Polokwane International Airport, it can be stated 

without a shadow of doubt that the organization has performed well in processing both 

passenger and aircraft movement in and out of the Province. 

However during the year under review the entity was stabilised after it experienced a lot 

of challenges which led it to receive a disclaimer audit opinion in the 2013/14 financial 

year. 

The entity noted the challenges and worked tirelessly with the Department of Transport 

together with the Section 100 (b) Administrator, to address the challenges and 

opportunities. 

During the year under review the entity did not have the board and in terms of Public 

Finance Management Act, the Chief Executive Officer has to take the responsibilities of 

the board. To improve financial management and good governance and with the support 

of the Provincial Treasury, it was recommended to appoint the cluster Audit Committee 

that will provide the oversight role on the financial affairs of the entity. 

The institution is not where we want it to be in terms of its strategic role in the province. 

Our expectation is that the institution should facilitate the development of long much 

talked about cargo logistics in the province and contribute to the developmental 

objectives of the country and the province as spelt out in both the National Development 

Plan and the Limpopo Development Plan respectively. 



Limpopo is the fruits and vegetable bowl of Southern Africa and to this end, we are 

morally bound to utilise this competitive advantage for the betterment of the quality of 

life of the people of this province through the creation of employment opportunities. 

GAAL with its effective stakeholder relationship should begin to exploit this opportunity 

so that we can minimize the number of road trucks destroying our roads on a daily basis. 

We do acknowledge that the entity alone cannot realise this much needed intervention. 

It is through partnership with all stakeholders e.g. Polokwane and Capricorn 

Municipality, Limpopo Tourism, Limpopo Economic Development Agency etc. that this 

dream for the people of Limpopo can be realised 

Gateway Airport Authority Limited has performed well during the year under review 

compared to the previous financial year. We observed with keen interests the steady 

increase in the collection of revenue as compared to the previous financial year. The 

entity has also managed to improve its Audit results from a disclaimer to a qualified audit 

opinion. 

The entity made a strategic decision to review its aeronautical tariffs to be in line with 

all other peer group in the industry. The maintenance of airport facilities and the 

retention of the Airport International license is an expensive exercise. We therefore 

congratulate management for the strategic decision to attempt to increase their revenue 

with a view to minimise dependence on the annual grant they receive from the 

Department of Transport. The entity is well on cause to facilitate and transfer land 

ownership from the National Department of Public Works to GAAL. This is amongst the 

initiative that will turn around the financial position of the entity from being a grant 

funded institution to be a self-sustainable entity in line with the PFMA Schedule 3D entity 

Gateway Airport Authority Limited is playing a very important role in the economy of the 

province. The increase in the domestic passenger movement and the introduction of the 

new scheduled private charter flights with the corresponding development of new routes 

is the breath of fresh air to our economy. This initiative is aligned with a number of others 

aimed not only at improving the provincial transport landscapes which is the backbone 

of the economy but contributing significantly to the socio-economic impact in the 

province. 

Transport is a necessity for sustainable social and economic development. We in the 

transport sector know very well that no economy can thrive without a developed rail, 

road and aviation infrastructure networks. No economy can develop unless its transport 

sector plays its part in facilitating the movement of people, goods and services. 

-�-
Hon. Mapula Mokaba-Phukwana, MPL

MEC: Transport, Safety, Security and Liaison 



4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S OVERVIEW

Mr. Thulani Zulu 
C.E.O of Gateway Airports Authority Limited

It is a great pleasure to unveil the Annual Report of Gateway Airport Authority Limited 

(GAAL) for the financial year 2014/2015 to the MEC of Limpopo Department of 

Transport, Safety, Security and Liaison. Gateway Airport Authority Limited (GAAL) is a 

scheduled 3D provincial business enterprise reporting to the Department of Transport, 

budget vote. Currently GAAL is managing Polokwane International Airport (PIA). This 

airport holds the international airport license status for the Limpopo province and is 

the only airport that has that status in the province. 

A reflection of the year under review brings to mind the first step to the achievement of 

our objective which is to develop Polokwane International Airport into a catalyst for 

economic development, by ensuring that we process the arrival of passengers and 

aircrafts in a seamless manner thereby ensuring that there are no negative incidents of 

safety and security raised by South African Civil Aviation Authority (SACAA), our 

regulator. In terms of passenger growth numbers for the financial year 2014/15 the 

airport has experienced a negative growth of both international and regional passenger 

and aircraft movement as a result of Ebola epidemic threats. However our airport is 

continuing to receive positive growth from domestic traffic movement as a result of the 

provinces agricultural, government business and mining opportunities. 

The expirer date and hence termination of the period of the board of directors on the 

31 st October 2014 has had some challenges for the institution but the activation of the 

PFMA act , that stipulates that the accounting officer assumes automatic responsibility 

came with huge responsibility for my office. There were a number of critical decisions 

that my office has had to tackle to normalize the institution in terms of performance 

service delivery. 

Capacity of personnel continues to be a major challenge for the entity and to this end; 

we did not perform well in some of the key service delivery areas. 



The entity experienced general poor performance in the Operation, Finance and 

Business and Development departments because of the availability of responsible 

managers who were expected to drive the implementation of our Annual performance 

plans. 

To this end, the office of the Premier seconded its official to act as Acting Chief Financial 

officer and the shareholder seconded its official to act as the Company Secretary. With 

the dismissal of our Senior Operations Manager, the entity saw the Operations Manager 

performed this responsibility on an acting capacity. 

The entity has advertised this position and the appointed candidates will start in the 

beginning of the second quarter. 

NEWAIRLINE

A new domestic scheduled Majestic Air Charter has started flying in and out of 

Polokwane International airport. This private Air Charter Company was established in 

the year 2005. Apart from starting new routes from Polokwane to Durban, Lanseria, 

Nelspruit and Cape Town. This airline also flies in our neighboring countries in 

Botswana, Zambia, Namibia, Swaziland, Mozambique, Malawi and Lesotho. With the 

introduction of this airline at our airport we have seen our domestic passenger profile 

changing. 

GAAL AWARD 

Accompanying this breakthrough is the recent recognition PMR diamonds award that 

we received again this year for our role in uplifting the economy of the Limpopo 

province in the previous financial year. We have being recognized as an institution that 

contribute significantly to the economic growth and development in the Limpopo 

province. 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 

GAAL has identified the need to develop strategic partnership with institutions with 

similar interests and we have successfully developed an MOU with the Capricorn 

district Municipality and Polokwane municipality with a view to strengthen our 

partnership in the area of commercial development around the airport and especially 

the transfer of the Land from National Department of Public Works to GAAL, so that we 

can jointly develop commercial development opportunities that will stimulate the 

economy of the province thereby creating job opportunities .. 

Gateway Airport Authority Limited has received an increase on our revenue and this is 

attributed to the introduction of the new scheduled domestic airline and an increase on 

our non-aeronautical revenue. Management is committed to continue to increase our 



revenue in order to accomplish our long term strategic vision of being self-sustainable 

not too dependent on the grant we receive from the department of Transport. 

The institution has undergone numerous challenges during the past financial year, 

which saw the organization awarded a disclaimer audit opinion in the previous financial 

year. Asset and revenue management were a great weakness for the entity and we have 

attempted to address these challenges in this financial year despite capacity constraints 

in the finance division. 

GAAL management would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholder the 

Department of Transport for their assistance in all areas of the performance of the 

entity. 

Chief Ex e ive Officer 

Gateway Airport Authority Limited 

Date: 19/08/2015 



5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY

FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report are consistent with the Annual Financial 

Statements audited by the Auditor General. 

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from any omissions. 

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Guidelines on Annual Reporting issued 

by National Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with South African 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for 

the judgements made with respect to this information. 

The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control 

that has been designed to provide reasonable assurances as to the integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the human resources information and the Annual Financial Statements. 

External auditors were engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements. 

In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 

resources information and the financial affairs of this public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 

2015. 

Yours faithfully 



6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1. Vision 

To be an optimally functioning airports authority and centre of excellence for 
aviation services in the region 

6.2. Mission 

To utilise our strategic location as a gateway, we will provide world class airport 

facilities that stimulate job creation, skills development, trade and tourism within 

the region. 

6.3. Values 

• Passionate: Living our values and pursuing our goals, shared vision and
commitment to our mission with passion

• Responsive: proactive response to demographic, social, development and
environmental challenges and opportunities and socially responsive

• Integrity: enabling trust and respect in all our action by doing the right actions all

the time and being accountable
• Dedication: dedication to good governance, Compliance to legislation, aviation

regulations and a good corporate citizen
• Excellence: continuously improving and innovating our business and delighting

our stakeholders by providing unsurpassed service excellence.

7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

Gateway Airports Authority Limited (GAAL) is a Schedule 30 Provincial Government 

Business Enterprise. 

GAAL's mandate is to manage all non-private airports in Limpopo, including Polokwane 

International Airport, in compliance with various legislative and administrative Acts, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

• South African Civil Aviation Authority (SACAA) Act, Act No.40 of 98;
• The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996;
• SA Civil Aviation Authority Act, 2002; (NN)
• Air Traffic and Navigation Services Act, 1993;
• Public Finance Management Act. No. 1 of 1999, as amended by Act 29 of 1999

and Treasury Regulations;
• Companies Act, 2008;
• Employment Equity Act, Act No.65 of 1998;
• Labour Relations Act, Act No. 66 of 199 5;
• Occupational Health and Safety Act, Act No. 85 of 1993;
• Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, Act No. 5 of 2000;



Policy mandates 

Limpopo Development Plan 

National White Paper on Transport 

King III 

National Transport Master Plan 2050 



8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

'. l',I : ,c : 
:

Board Of 

Directors 

I Chief Financial Officer 

Mrs Thembisile Mathabatha 

---------------------, 

I. Senior 

Operations Manager 

Mr Williie Mathonsi 

Company Secretary 

(Post Vacant) 



PART B: PERFORMANCE 

INFORMATION 

1. AUDITOR'S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

Refer to page 58 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial 
Information. 

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

2.1. Service Delivery Environment 

GAAL was established by the Limpopo Provincial Government to manage three (3) 

airports in the Province; however, due to funding constraints, the Authority currently 

only manages the Polokwane International Airport (PIA). PIA has a Category Seven (7) 

International License and is built on a precinct of 945 hectares of land. 

Polokwane International Airport is located within the Capricorn District of Limpopo and 

offers access to two scheduled domestic airlines, namely SA Airlink, which flies to OR 

Tambo International Airport, and Majestic Airline, which flies to Virginia, Kruger 

Mpumalanga and Lanseria airports. 

With the introduction of a new airline, Majestic Airline, the Authority was able to 

generate further revenue. 

GAAL has increased its tariffs as a result of benchmarking itself against other peer

group industry partners. This has contributed to a much needed injection of cash into 

the organisation. We have contracted Air Traffic Navigation Services to collect approach 

fees, fees which we have not collected in the past. We believe that this intervention will 

assist the organisation to further address all compliance and maintenance issues facing 

the organisation. 



Compliance status of the airport has further been confirmed by the Civil Aviation 

Authority's audit inspection during the year under review. As a result of this audit the 

airport received International Airport status. It must be noted that there are other 

compliance requirements that the airport is expected to adhere to in order for the 

airport to continue to deliver a superior safety and security environment. 

During the 2014/15 financial year PIA experienced a decrease in non-scheduled 

regional aircraft and passenger movement and also a decrease in the non-scheduled 

international aircraft and passenger movement for two categories. As a result, GAAL 

management did not meet the target as projected. The reasons for this were the impact 

of the Ebola epidemic elsewhere in Africa on travel and the new visa regulations 

introduced by the Department of Home Affairs. 

GAAL also experienced a decrease in scheduled aircraft movement during the December 

and January period because of the December holidays. SA Airlink reduced the frequency 

of its flights from four flights per day to two flights per day during the holiday period. 

Aircraft movement - 2014/2015 ---- 2016/2017 

Type 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 Projected 

Baseline Target Projection Output for 

2017/2018 

Domestic Scheduled 2 504 2 504 2 504 2 500 

Domestic non-Scheduled 4 300 4500 4 500 4 500 

Regional non-Scheduled 738 800 800 800 

International non- 1055 1365 1375 1375 

Scheduled 

TOTAL 8 597 9169 9179 9175 



PASSENGER MOVEMENT 2014/2015 ------2016/2017 

Type 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 Projected 

Budget Projection Projection 
Output for 

2017/2018 

Domestic Schedule 60 695 61200 61200 61200 

Domestic non-Scheduled 5 164 

Regional non-Scheduled 1412 

International non-Scheduled 2 206 

7 254 

1 OOO 

3180 

7 254 7 254 

1 010 1 010 

3 200 3 200 

TOTAL 69477 72 634 72664 72 664 

The projected output for passenger movement is based on the output of the previous three 

years. Our plan going forward is to continue to market the airport in collaboration with the 

Limpopo Tourism Agency. We have also initiated a collaborative effort with South African 

Airways with a view to maximise our aeronautical revenue. Our areas of collaboration include: 

• Development of a pilot training academy

• Commissioning of a long-term aircraft storage facility

• Cargo development

• Mango low cost carrier development

Our efforts to unlock these key areas of development will inevitably bring added revenue to the 

organisation. 

AEROTROPOLIS CONCEPT 

The potential strategic growth of Polokwane International Airport has been hindered by the fact 

that the land is not owned by GAAL. As result it is difficult for the Authority to realise the full 

potential of the precinct to the benefit of the airport and the Province. Our outdated Airport 

Masterplan, which was conceived in 2005, is one of the key weaknesses facing the Authority 

from a growth perspective. The airport needs an Integrated Airport Masterplan that speaks to 

the local development economy. 

Our outdated Airport Masterplan has identified cargo logistics as a viable business proposition 

for the airport. This is so because agriculture is the main economic driver in the Province. 

Gateway Airport Authority Limited initiated a partnership with the Capricorn District and 

Polokwane Municipalities. The purpose of this partnership is to unlock the land around the 

airport in order to facilitate the development of an aerotropolis concept. The proposed agenda 

of this partnership and the aerotropolis concept is to support the Limpopo Development Plan. 



The land at the airport is currently owned by the national Department of Public Works and 

therefore GAAL is unable to sign long-leases with potential tenants. Our immediate challenge is 

to resolve the legalities around ownership of the land and the limitations imposed on the 

Authority by the Deed of Donation, which cedes control of the land from the Department of 

Public Works to GAAL. Consideration should be giving to passing custodianship of the land to 

GAAL. 

GAAL's programme structure is as follows: 

GAAL Programmes for the 2014/15 Financial Year 

Programme Sub-programme 2014/2015 

1. Administration • Board Of Directors
• Office of Chief Executive Officer
• Corporate Support

2. Business Development • Market Development
• Industrial Development

3. Operations • Airside Operations
• Landside Operations

GAAL is working closely with Statistics South Africa to market Limpopo as a preferred 

destination. Statistics South Africa is providing factual information about the traffic growth in 

the Province, helping GAAL to continue to attract domestic and regional airlines to the Province. 

GAAL embarked on only one capital project for the year under review, namely, the Fire Training 

Project. This is a compliance project prescribed by the regulator. 

2.2. Organisational Environment 

The aviation industry is a substantial generator of economic growth and, therefore, 

contributes to employment opportunities; and GAAL is no exception to this rule. In the year 

under review GAAL processed 64 450 passengers and 7 197 aircra� The number of 
passenger and aircraft movements has a multiplier effect on the economy of the Limpopo 
Province. 

GAAL continued to operate under difficult circumstances, the term of office of the interim 

Board of Directors expired on the 31st October 2014. The shareholder is still in the process of 
appointing a new Board of Directors. 

Given that the current institutional arrangements are deemed to be a significant threat to the 
realisation of the Authority's strategic goals, the Accounting Authority, in consultation with 
Executive Management, reviewed the organisational structure of the Authority in order to 

align this structure to the strategic plans of the organisation, with an emphasis placed on 

compliance and regulatory provisions. 



Budgetary constraints at GAAL led to the challenges in implementing non-compliance training 

and development programmes for employees. Priority was given to the regulatory 
environment and the bulk of our training and development budget was spent on compliance 
training. As a result, capacity and skills development at GAAL have been adversely affected. 

The Authority currently has a staff complement of 60. Although the Authority commits itself 
to achieving its equity targets it has not met the prescribed equity targets at all levels. In order 
to remedy this, the Authority will embark on the development of recruitment strategies to 

address current inequalities. Currently the Authority does not have female representation at 

senior management level. 

The effective implementation of our stakeholder relationships saw GAAL facilitating a study 
tour to KwaZulu-Natal to visit the King Shaka International Airport, Dube Trade Port and the 
Moses Mabhida Stadium. The members of this delegation included the Executive Mayors of 

Capricorn and Polokwane Municipalities, together with their Municipal Managers. The 
purpose of this study tour was to explore areas of co-operation and learn about airport and 
cargo development opportunities. As a result of this study tour a Memorandum of 
Understanding was signed between GAAL and the two municipalities. 

A major challenge that the Authority is facing is the transfer of the land around the airport 
GAAL cannot sign long-lease agreements with any potential property developers because it 
does not own the land that it occupies, stifling development opportunities. The Authority is 
working in close co-operation with its shareholder and the Polokwane Municipality to 
facilitate the transfer of the land to the Authority. The bulk of GAAL' s revenue is tied up in this 
transfer process. 

2.3. Key Policy Developments and Legislative Changes 

No key developments or legislative changes occurred during the period under review. 



2.4. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals 

STRATEGIC GOAL STATEMENT TARGET OUTCOME 

GOAL " 

To increase To develop and implement RS.6m R6 812 406 

revenue programmes that will result in 

an increase in both 

aeronautical and non 

aeronautical revenue streams 

and significantly improve the 

financial sustainability of the 

organisation 

To manage To develop, maintain and Identify MOUs signed with 

our leverage relationships with all stakeholders South African Airways 

stakeholders the relevant stakeholders for of interest to and Polokwane 

and promote the purpose of regional the Authority Municipality 

regional integration and collaboration 

integration 

To continually To provide cost-effective Compliance PIA was audited by 

strive to world class facilities with a with civil SACAA for compliance 

provide world focus on customer service aviation during the license 

class airport excellence, innovation, safety authority renewal process and 

facilities and security for the promotion regulations managed to retain its 

of a credible brand identity. International License 

status 

To promote To be innovative in developing Attract an AEROSUD Aviation 

job creation aviation industry skills and aviation training school was 

and skills promote the creation of jobs training contracted to provide 

development school aircraft maintenance 

and pilot training 

To enhance To improve corporate Board of Interim Board of 

corporate governance and to be fully Directors Directors' term of 

governance compliant to all industry- appointed office expired and the 

and related legislation, regulations CEO assumed the 

compliance and policies Accounting Authority 

role as per PFMA 



1 

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ OBJECTIVE

3.1. Programme 1: Administration 

Purpose 

Enhanced corporate support and good governance. 

Sub-pro&rammes 

The programme has the following sub-programmes: 

• Board of Directors

• Office of the Chief Executive Officer

• Corporate Support

Strate&ic Objectives 

Pro&ramme 1 Strate&ic Objective: To improve institutional capacity by 2014/15 
through the provision of corporate support, sound financial management and 
procedures 

Strate&ic objectives, performance indicators planned tar&ets and actual 
achievements 

The programme managed to achieve 4 out of the 7 targets set or 5 7% of its targets. The 
following targets were achieved: 

• Revenue collection;

• Filling of vacant posts;

• Training courses;

• Retention of staff; and

To improve 
institutional 
capacity by 
2014/15 
through the 
provision of 
corporate 
support, sound 
financial 
management 
and procedures 

Disclaimer 
Qualified 
-with

-with
matters of
emphasis

matters
of
emphasis



Key performance indicators, planned tar1:ets and actual achievements 

Number of 
1 vacant 3 3 3 0 None 

positions filled 

Number of 
4 

Four interns were 
2 interns 5 7 3 recruited after 

employed march 2015 

Number of 

3 
training 

8 13 13 0 None 
courses 
attended 

Review of 

Amount of 
aeronautical and 
non-aeronautical 

14 
revenue R6.4m R5.6m R7.6m (R2.0m) 

tariffs and the 
collected 

introduction of a 
new airline 

Review 
Risk 

Risk plan 
and 

register Risk plan was The risk plan was 
5 reviewed and 

implement 
reviewed not developed but not 

implemented but not implemented approved 
risk plan 

approved. 

Not achieved due to 
the followings: 2 

Number of employees resigned, 
permanent 64 59 56 (3) 1 retirement and 1 
employees pass away. The 

position were not 
filled as re orted. 

Number of 
Not achieved as 

employees 
reported employees 

who signed 
7 performance 43 236 134 102 

needed more 
training on the 

management 
contracts and 

recently introduced 

reviews 
PMS. 



Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

Area of under performance Strategies to address under performance 

1 

2 

3 

r 

Number of interns employed Align organisational needs to budget 

Risk plan reviewed and Submit the reviewed plan to Audit and Risk Committee 
implemented 

Number of employees whose Embark on PMS training so that employees can understand 
performance is reviewed and accept the system and provide performance incentives 

Changes to planned targets 

The frequency of Board meetings was changed during the year under review from quarterly 

to monthly. 

Linking performance with budgets 

-- --- -- - �- - -- -
--

-

Administration 36,130,483 40,691,109 (4,560,626) 24,915,726 30,229,044 (5,313,318) 

Total R36,130,483 R40,691,109 (R4,560,626) R24,915,726 R30,229,044 (RS,313,318) 

3.2. Programme 2: Business Development 

Purpose 

Increased revenue to entrench self-sustainability 

Sub-programmes 

The programme is comprised of the following sub-programmes 

• Market development

• Industrial development

Strategic objectives 

Programme 2 Strategic Objective I: To develop and implement revenue-generating 
programmes to break even 



Pro&ramme 2 Strate&ic objective 2: To develop and implement sustainable long-term 

industrialisation programs to include air freight and increased passenger volumes 

Strate&ic objectives. performance indicators planned tar1:ets and actual 
achievements 

The programme managed to achieve one of its strategic objectives, namely the review of 
aeronautical and non-aeronautical tariffs. 

Strategic obiectives 

To develop and N/A Review Aeronautic None None 

implement revenue- tariff and al and non-

generating rental aeronautic 

programmes to break contracts al tariffs 

even were 

reviewed 

To develop and N/A None None None Due to 

implement budget 

sustainable long-term constraints 

industrialisation no resources 

programmes to were 
include air freight allocated to 

and increased this 
ob'ective 

Key performance indicators, planned tar&ets and actual achievements 

Implementation N/A Review Aeronautical None None 

of revenue- tariffs tariffs and 

generating and all rental 

programmes rental contracts 

contract reviewed 



Strate&)' to overcome areas of under performance 

The programme did not perform well in the development and implementation of 

sustainable long-term industrialisation programs due to the following factors: 

• Delay in the transfer of land from National Department of Public Works; and

• Capacity within the programme due to financial constraints.

Changes to planned targets 

There were no changes in the planned targets. 

Linking performance with budgets 

Business Development 320,394 146,318 174,076 273,687 291,712 

Total 320,394 146,318 174,076 273,687 291,712 

3.3. Programme 3: Operations 

Purpose 

To provide world class, safe and secure airport facilities and services 

Sub-programmes 

The programme is made up of the following sub-programmes 

• Airside Operations

• Landside Operations

• Maintenance

• Strategic objectives

Programme 3 Strategic objective: To manage both airside and landside operations 
and create a safe and secure aviation environment 

Polokwane International Airport was audited by the South African Civil Aviation 
Authority (SACAA) on license renewal for its Category 7 License, which was awarded and 
the airport is currently operating as a CAT7 airport, which provides for minimum 
utilisation of equipment and funds when compare to CAT9 airport requirements. 

Scheduled Flights at Polokwane International Airport 

Polokwane International Airport is presently operating two scheduled airlines (SA 
Airlink and Majestic Air). 

(18,025) 

(18,025) 



South African Airlink Schedules are as follows: 

1st Flight 

znct Flight 

3rct Flight

4th Flight
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Majestic Air scheduled their flights as follows: 
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Monday Arrival 09:00 Departure 

Arrival 16:00 Departure 

Wednesday Arrival 09:00 Departure 

Friday 

Arrival 16:00 Departure 

Arrival 09:00 Departure 

Arrival 16:00 Departure 

Non - Scheduled Services 

GAAL also processed non-scheduled flights during the past financial year, which included 
domestic, regional and international flights. 

Because of PIA's geographic location as gateway to the rest of Africa, most of the non
scheduled regional and international flights were used by tourists as a gateway to the 
Province to experience the Province's landscape and to participate in hunting safaris. 

Future Plans 

The programme is still to finalise the construction of a training facility, which is an airport 
firefighting requirement of both ICAO and SACAA. 

Fire and Rescue 

Fire and Rescue personnel from GAAL attended training that enables them to meet the 
requirements for attending to an airport fire. 

Strate&ic objectives. performance indicators planned tar&ets and actual 
achievements 

The programme achieved one of its ten targets or 10% of its targets. 

Strate&ic objectives 

The Operations Department is mandated to manage both airside and landside airport 
operations in a safe and secure environment and to ensure that Polokwane International 

10:00 

16:20 

10:00 

16:20 

10:00 

16:20 



1 

Airport fully complies with SACAA regulations. The performance of Operations against 

predetermined objectives during the year under review is outlined in the table below. 

To manage Retained To obtain CAT? None None 
both airside Airport Airport license 
and landside License license achieved 
operations and CAT9 CAT? 
to create a safe 
and secure 
aviation 
environment 



1 Number of Reduction of flight frequency 
scheduled from four to two due to festive 
domestic aircraft 2 448 2 504 2 42 5 79 

season from December 2014 to 
handled mid-January 2015. 

Number of non- Our projected forecasts were 

2 
scheduled 

4 52 4 3 674 3 312 362 
based on performance during the 

domestic aircraft previous financial year, without 

handled considering the seasonal changes 

Our projected forecasts were 

3 
Number of regional 

551 738 562 
176 based on performance during the 

aircraft handled previous financial year, without 
considering the seasonal changes 

Our projected forecasts were 
based on performance during the 
previous financial year. The 

Number of impact of the Ebola epidemic and 

4 international 1010 1055 898 157 the introduction of new visa 

aircraft handled requirements by the Department 
of Home Affairs were both 
deemed responsible for this 
decline in numbers. 



Number of 
Reduction of flight frequency 

scheduled 
from four to two due to festive 

5 domestic 57_879 60_695 56_929 3_766 
season from December 2014 to 

passengers 
mid-January 2015. 

handled 

Number of non-
Most of corporate business re-

scheduled 

6 domestic 4 771 5 164 4 339 825 
opens for business late in 
January and, as such, passenger 

passengers 
movement declined. 

handled 
Our projected forecasts were 

Number of regional based on performance during the 
passengers 1183 1 412 1206 206 previous financial year, without 
handled considering seasonal changes 

Our projected forecasts were 
based on performance during the 

Number of 
previous financial year. The 

international 
impact of the Ebola epidemic and 

8 1 670 2 206 1 976 230 the introduction of new visa 
passengers 

requirements by the Department 
handled 

of Home Affairs were both 
deemed responsible for this 
decline in numbers. 

PIA Infrastructure Availability Infrastructure None Reduction of the allocated 

and Maintenance of PIA and budget during the financial year 

Plan developed infrastructur maintenance hampered implementation of the 

9 N/A e plan and plan plans 

maintenance developed 
plan 

Fire and Rescue Fire and Only draft Fire and The plan was put on hold due to 
Training facility Rescue specification rescue an unexpected budget reduction 

10 
established 

N/A 
training for the facility training 
facility were facility not 
completed completed completed 



Strate� to overcome areas of under performance 

Area of under performance Strategies to address under performance 

1 Scheduled domestic aircraft handled 

2 
Non-scheduled domestic aircraft handled 

3 
Regional aircraft handled 

Strengthen relationships with stakeholders 
International aircraft handled of interest, such as tourism agencies, 

Scheduled domestic passengers handled 
investment promotion institutions, 
municipalities, business associations, 

Non-scheduled domestic passengers 
sporting codes and government 
departments. 

handled 

7 
Regional passengers handled 

8 
International passengers handled 

9 
Fire and Rescue training facility 

Implement the project plan as approved. 
established 

Cham�es to planned tar�ets 

There were no changes in the targets in this programme. 

Linkin� performance with bud�ets 

Operations 16,443,981 13,742,820 2,701,161 7,310,587 19,428,163 (12,117,576) 

Total R16,443,981 R13,742,820 2,701,161 R7,310,587 R19,428,163 (R12,117,576) 
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4. Revenue collection
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Aeronautical 3,034,000 3,981,864 (947,864) 3,000,000 3,163,177 (163,177) 

Non-Aeronautical 2,539,000 2,830,542 (291,542) 2,000,000 3,101,039 (1,101,039) 

Total 5,573,000 6,812,406 (1,239,406) 5,000,000 6,264,216 (1,264,216) 

The Authority collected more than 100% of the budgeted revenue from the following revenue 

streams: 

• Aeronautical services - which includes landing, passenger, parking, and baggage handling
fees, and fuel throughput, etc., and

• Non-aeronautical services - which includes rental of office space, car parking_fees, water and

electricity tariffs, sale of permits and sale of tender documents, etc.

This was achieved through the revision of aeronautical tariffs, the introduction of new
scheduled airline and a review of non-aeronautical tariffs.

4.1. Capital investment

• The perimeter fence and the surrounding gravel road were completed during the year

under review.

• The following are projects that will be implemented in the 2015/16 financial year:

� Construction of the Fire and Rescue Training facility; 

� Repainting of the airport building; 

� Construction of a Public Parking Management System; 

� Installation of CCTV security cameras into the airport; 

� Purchase of X-ray screening machines for passenger security screening; 

� Purchase of ILS spares for the navigational aid equipment; and 

� Renovation and upgrading of the kitchen facilities at conference centre. 

• The airport is not planning to close or downgrade any of its current facilities during the

implementation of the abovementioned projects.

• The airport is in the initial stages of a supply chain process ensuring that infrastructure

maintenance is carried out.

• No major impact on the current expenditure is expected due to the availability of budget

in the current year.

• No assets were disposed of or scrapped during the year under review. However, the

airport continues to experience numerous incidents of cable theft.

• The Authority will enter into service level agreements with relevant service providers for

the service and maintenance of specialised assets.



�---

: 

-

- ------

• Most of our capital assets are in a fair condition.

• There were no major maintenance projects undertaken during the period under review.

• The maintenance backlog has increased but this will be addressed as per the maintenance

plan.

- - -

Perimeter Fence 2,500,000 2,400,000 100,000 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 

Total RZ,500,000 RZ,400,000 R 100,000 R 2,500,000 RO RZ,500,000 



PART C: GOVERNANCE 

1. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

From time to time GAAL is expected to account to the Portfolio Committee on Transport,

Safety, Security and Liaison regarding the exercising of its mandate, as stipulated in our
shareholder contract. During the financial year under review the Authority was invited to
present its quarterly performance reports.

On the 10th March 2015 GAAL management attended a Portfolio Committee meeting held in
the Lebowakgomo Legislative Chamber. At this meeting the Portfolio Committee raised a

concern regarding one of the airport's tenants providing training to individuals who are from
outside South Africa and who were in the country without the necessary documentation. This
concern was raised by the State Security Agency and reported to the relevant agency, which,
in turn, reported it to the Department of Home Affairs. The Department of Home Affairs is
currently investigating the matter and, to date, no update on the matter has been forwarded
to the Authority.

2. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

GAAL is expected to submit its Annual Report and quarterly reports to its shareholder, in line
with a service level agreement signed between the two parties. These documents guide the
shareholder when releasing grant funding, as per the agreement, every year. The revised APP
for 2014/15 was approved by the Chief Executive Officer, the Section 100 (1) (b)
Administrator and the Honourable MEC for Transport, Safety, Security and Liaison.

The Authority was under National Administration in terms of Section 100 (1) (b) during the
year under review. The Authority reported cases concerning two senior management
employees who were investigated by Hawks because of allegations of corruption committed
by these two senior management employees.

3. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY /BOARD

Introduction

The Board is the custodian of corporate governance and it is responsible for the strategic
direction and control of GAAL. The Board ensures that GAAL is a responsible corporate entity
and complies with all relevant laws, regulations and standards.

The role of the Board

The focal responsibility of the Board is to develop effective and efficient strategies which must

be implemented by the management of GAAL. Some of the key functions of the Board are to: -

• monitor and supervise the Authority's Executive in order to ensure proper
implementation of company policies;



• ensure compliance with all relevant legislation, especially aviation-related legislation,
codes and practices;

• ensure that the company has in place adequate systems of financial and operational

control; and
• Monitor the exercising of delegated authority on an ongoing basis.

Board Charter 

The responsibilities of the Board are wide and detailed, as set out in the Companies Act, Act 71 of 2008, 

as amended. The Board has defined levels of materiality and is given specific powers to carry out its 

mandate. 

The general functions of the Board were as follows, to:-

• Oversee the establishment and administration of GAAL's system of corporate governance;
• Draft and adopt a written statement of its own governance principles and regularly re

evaluate these principles;
• Exercise leadership, enterprise, integrity and judgement based on fairness, accountability,

responsibility and transparency;
• Determine GAAL's purpose, values and stakeholders and to develop strategies to achieve

the Authority's purpose, implement its values and satisfy its shareholder;
• Evaluate the performance of the Board and current and prospective directors;
• Safeguard GAAL's compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, and codes of best business

practice;
• Encourage GAAL to operate ethically by adopting and regularly reviewing and updating the

code of ethics governing the Authority's operations and by approving mechanisms aimed at
the prevention and detection of fraud and responding appropriately when fraud is
uncovered;

• Provide orientation and to ensure adequate training for directors;
• Appoint a Chairperson and to oversee the appointment of Directors and other Senior

Executives;
• direct succession planning of directors and senior management;
• manage conflicts of interest and independence issues by overseeing the development and

enforcement of a code of conduct;
• monitor and supervise executive management; and
• Ensure that adequate budgeting and business planning processes exist, which are aligned

with GAAL's strategic imperative and that performance is monitored against budgets and

plans.



STRATEGY 

• Providing direction to, and equipping, management in the formulation of a strategy and
planning process to meet such strategy and to adopt the recommended strategic plan;

• Regularly review and evaluate the strengths, weaknesses and opportunities of, and threats
to GAAL as part of setting and reviewing the strategic direction of GAAL;

• Monitoring GAAL's policies to ensure that these are aligned to the Authority's strategy and;

Composition of the Board 

The Board consists of a non-Executive Chairperson and non-Executive Directors who are 

appointed by the shareholder, as well as an Executive Director ( or Chief Executive Officer) 

who is appointed by the Board. The Directors are drawn from diverse backgrounds and 

without any doubt reflect South Africa's demographics. 

The Board was constituted as follows: 

Civil 

PTC, BA, BA Engineering, 

31-0ct-14
Hons, MA, PhD Town TranScape 

Dr. M Neluheni Chairperson 1-Nov-13 (Arch), ND Planning, Technologies, None 6 

(Civil) Project 

Management 

Pilot License, Aviation Safety None Operations 
Non-executive 31-0ct-14 MOP, Project & Project and Audit 

Mr. T Fisha 
Member 

1-Nov-13
Management Management and Risk 

0 

Committee 

Human 

B Admin, Post Resources, Audit and 

Ms.WG Non-executive 31-0ct-14 Grad Dip - Transport & None Risk and 

Koedyk Member 
1-Nov-13

Marketing Public 
Social and 5 

ethics 
Administration committee 

Pilot (Airline 

Ms.MA Non-executive 31-0ct-14 Transport Aviation None 

Maha pa Member 
1-Nov-13

License) 
Operations 4 

BA Cur, BA Cur Health Care & Human 

Non-executive 31-0ct-14 Hons, MA Cur, Public None resources 
Dr. HN Manzini 

Member 
1-Nov-13

PhD Administration 
and social 4 
and ethics 
committee 



Facilitation 

Africa, 

Marketing, Economic Human 

Non-executive 31-0ct-14
CM (SA), MBA, Leadership & Affairs/Business resources 

Mr. I Nkama 
Member 

1-Nov-13 MSc, Change Development and social 6 
Management International and ethics 

Corporation, committee 

Strategy Retch 

MA, 
Transport, Human 

31-0ct-14 Aeronautical 
Aviation & Resources 

Non-executive None 
Mr. MT Peege 

Member 
1-Nov-13

Engineering 
Human and 2 

Resources Operation 
committee 

Bcom, CTA, 
Audit , 

Mr.TA Non-executive 31-0ct-14 Accounting & Agape (CA) Inc. Audit and 

Ramawa Member 
1-Nov-13 CA(SA), RA 

Risk 
Risk 6 
Committee 

BA, BA Hons, 

Mr. TTS Zulu 
Executive 31-0ct-14 Project Marketing, None 

1-Nov-13 All 5 
Member management 

Board meetings are scheduled annually in advance. The Board met monthly to determine policy, 

deliberate on important business matters, as well as to evaluate the performance of the Executive 

Management of the Authority. Special meetings were convened as and when necessary in order to 

address urgent matters. 

The attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board during the financial year was as follows: -

Dr. M Neluheni ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ 

Mr. T Fisha X X X X X X 

Ms. E Koedyk ./ ./ X ./ ./ ./ 

Ms.A Mahapa X ./ ./ X ./ ./ 

Dr. HN Manzini ./ ./ ./ X ./ X 

Mr. I Nkama ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ 

Mr. MT Peege X ./ X ./ X X 

Mr. TA Ramawa ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ 

Mr. T Zulu ./ ./ ./ ./ ./ X 



Committees 

In the year under review, the Board established four committees, namely; 

• Audit and Risk Committee;
• Operations Committee,
• Human Resource Committee; and
• Social and Ethics Committee.

The role of these committees was to focus on key functional areas of the core business of GAAL. These 

committees assisted the Board in carrying out its responsibilities. Their recommendations and 

reports were presented to the Board to ensure transparency and full disclosure of the activities of 

the committees. Each committee operated within terms of reference that set out the composition, 

roles, responsibilities and delegated authority of the committee. In addition to the terms of reference, 

the committees exercised their delegated authority in accordance with specific policies approved by 

the Board. 

The membership of the committees, number of meetings and composition of each committee were 

as follows: 

Mr. T A  Ramawa 

Audit and Risk Committee 4 3 Ms. E Koedyk 
Mr. T Fisha 

Ms. A Mahapa 
Operations Committee 3 3 Mr. MT Peege 

Mr. T Fisha 

Mr. I Nkama 
Human Resource Committee 1 3 Mr. MT Peege 

Dr. HN Manzini 

Mr. I Nkama 
Social and Ethics Committee 0 3 Dr. HN Manzini 

Ms. E Koed k 



Remuneration of board members 

Dr. M Neluheni 

Mr. T Fisha 

Ms.WG 
Koed k 

Ms.MA 

Maha a 

Dr. HN Manzini 

Mr. I Nkama 

Mr.MTPeege 

Mr.TA 

Ramawa 

Mr. TTS Zulu 

40,800 

27,000 

12,000 

25,000 

34,000 

Total R138,800 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

353,363 46,986 441,149 

121,692 12,675 161,367 

121,692 6,576 140,268 

121,692 11,337 158,029 

7,309 7,309 

135,516 47,083 216,599 

0 

R 853,955 R131,967 Rl,124,722 

The Authority did not have a risk management policy and strategy in place in the year under review 

due to capacity challenges. Taking into account these challenges, the Authority proposed sharing 

risk management resources with the Department of Transport. The latter is positively considering 

the proposal and formalisation thereof. 

5. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Authority did not have an Internal Control Unit during the year under review. 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Activities of Internal Audit 

1) Follow-up review

2) Financial discipline review (IFC)

3) Performance Management information review

4) Supply Chain management review

5) Regulatory compliance review

6) Fraud management review

7) Risk management review

8) Human Resource review

9) Information Technology review



10)Business development review

ll)Record management review

12)Contract management review

Summary of Audit work done 

Ensure that the charter, independence and activities of internal audit function are clearly 

understood and respond to the objectives of the entity and the legal framework. 

Regularly review the functional and administrative reporting lines of the internal audit to ensure 

that the organizational structure is consistent with the principles of independence and 

accountability. 

Review and approve the internal audit charter, including internal audit strategic plan 

Confirm that the annual audit plan makes provision for critical risk areas in the entity. 

Advise the entity on resources allocated to give effect to the work outputs of the internal audit 

function. 

Ensure that there is support for the internal audit unit and external auditors from senior 

management. 

Consider and review report relating to difficulties encountered during the course of audit 

engagement, including any scope limitation or access to information report to accounting officer 

that remain unsolved. 

Conduct high level review of internal audit on an annual basis, to ascertain whether the internal 

audit unit complies with the international standards for the professional practice of internal audit. 

Evaluate the performance of internal audit activity in terms of the agreed goals and objectives as 

captured in the audit plan 



The tabled below discloses relevant information on meetings and attendance of_meetings of the audit

committee members: 

--
- -

, 

, 

----� - --- -- - - --- -- - -- -

Mr. T A  Ramawa 
Bcom, CTA, 

External N/A 
CA(SA), RA 

8 Admin, Post 
Ms. E Koedyk Grad Dip - External N/A 

Marketing 

Pilot License, 
Mr. T Fisha MDP, Project External N/A 

Management 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

-

3-Dec-13 31-0ct-14 4 

3-Dec-13 31-0ct-14 4 

3-Dec-13 31-0ct-14 0 

The Authority developed a set of Policies and Procedures in line with the Public Finance

Management Act and its regulations, to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. The

Authority has an approved mechanism for delegation of authority which ensures clear

segregation of duties, in compliance with Treasury regulations.

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The Authority has an approved Fraud Prevention Policy which clearly indicates methods to be

applied to prevent or to minimise fraud. The delegation of authority is also strictly applied to reduce

the risk of conniving in order to defraud the company. All our creditors are paid by electronic means,

directly into their bank accounts, utilising the ABSA Bank Cash Focus system, which also has

verification mechanisms. The password method for accessing the financial system is in place with

clear audit trails. The user group or functions within the system prohibits one official from initiating

a transaction and finalising it. The Authority uses the Premiers Office's Fraud Hotline number 080

070 1701, which is posted at strategic points around the airport so that any member of the public

can report any suspected fraudulent activities.

9. MINIMISING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The SCM practitioners signed a code of conduct and took an oath of secrecy. The Bid Committee

members also signed a declaration of interest every time they evaluated or adjudicated a bid and

also signed an attendance register.



10. COMPANY/BOARD SECRETARY

The Company Secretary was responsible for:

• Ensuring that procedures, rules and regulations were adhered to and that there was

substantial compliance with the principles of good corporate governance, as articulated

in the King III Report, South African Civil Aviation Authority, International Civil Aviation

Regulations, the PFMA, the Companies Act, and other relevant legislation.

• Providing a central source for advice and guidance on business ethics, assisting the

Board, as a whole, and its members individually with guidance on how their duties,

responsibilities and powers should be adequately discharged and exercised in the best

interest of the Authority.

• Maintaining and regularly updating the Corporate Governance Manual, copies of which

are distributed to all Directors.

• Organising and conducting a Board-approved induction programme to familiarise new

Directors with the Authority's operations, their fiduciary duties as Board members and

the Authority's Corporate Governance processes.

• Assisting the Board to develop a training framework to assist the non-Executive

Directors with continuous development as Directors.

• Providing secretarial services to the Board and its committees



1. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

The Audit Committee held office from 151 April 2014 until 31s1 October 2014. The Committee comprised 

of the members listed below, and the meetings they held during the term of office. 

Date Date 
No. of 

Name Meetings 
Appointed Resigned 

Attended 

Mr. T A 
3-Dec-13 31-0ct-14 4 

Ramawa 

Ms. E Koedyk 3-Dec-13 31-0ct-14 4 

Mr. T Fisha 3-Dec-13 31-0ct-14 0 

The Member of the Executive (MEC) responsible for the Department of Transport, Public Works, 

Infrastructure and Roads co-opted members of the Audit Committee of the Department of Transport to 

serve GAAL with effect from 1 st June 2015.08.24 The Committee met with representatives of office of 

AGSA and GAAL Management team as indicated in the table below. 

Members 11 June 2015 13 August 2015 

Ms Mmathebe Moja (chairperson) Present Present 

Mr Trevor Boltman(member) Present Present 

Mr Malose Makgeta(member) Present Apology 

Mr Roy Mnisi (member) Apology Apology 



AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

The Audit Committee was appointed post year end and have conducted assessments and executed the 
responsibilities as reported hereunder. 

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The system of internal controls is designed to provide the cost effective assurance that assets are 
safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. 

In line with the requirements of the PFMA and King Ill Report, Internal Audit Activity provides the ARC 
and Management with assurance that the system of internal controls are adequate and effective. This is 
achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions 
and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the audit report on the Annual Financial Statements 
and management letter of the Auditor-General, we can report that the system of internal control for the 
period under review was ineffective and inefficient. 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit Activity 

The Internal Audit executed audits from the second quarter of the year. 

The following internal audit work was completed during the year under review: 

1) Follow-up review
2) Financial discipline review (IFC)
3) Performance Management information review

4) Supply Chain management review
5) Regulatory compliance review
6) Fraud management review
7) Risk management review
8) Human Resource review
9) Information Technology review
10) Business development review
11) Record management review
12) Contract management review
13) Corporate governance review



Matters of Concern 

The Audit Committee is concerned that: 

There is a significant number of vacancies in critical administrative functions of the entity, with 

the CFO post filled only in July 2015 

The significant amount of administration work was only executed at year end and not 

throughout the year 

The entity is scheduled as 3d in the PFMA yet is highly dependent on government grants 

There was no in-year monitoring within the entity as no quarterly reports were submitted to the 

shareholder department of Transport nor to the provincial treasury 

There were significant weaknesses in the system of controls and therefore would require 

critical resources to rebuilt the system 

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Audit Committee has: 
• Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer the audited annual

financial statements to be included in the Annual Report;

AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have met with the Auditor General to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. The AGSA 
undertook to resolve all issues with management prior to issuing final report 

We accept the Auditor-General's report on the annual financial statements and are of the opinion that 
the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the report of the 
Audit-General. 

CA... 

Mmathebe Moja 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
31 July 2015 



PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

1. ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

GAAL had a number of critical vacancies during the financial year under review, namely, the Chief 

Financial Officer (previously Finance Manager), Business Development_Manager, Sales and 

Marketing Manager, Senior Operations Manager and Company Secretary. The Operations Manager 
and the Manager Revenue and Compliance were appointed to act on the Senior Operations and the 

Finance Managers behalf respectively. The shareholder also seconded to GAAL an individual in the 

role of Company Secretary and the Office of the Premier seconded an individual to fill the Chief 

Financial Officer role. GAAL intends filling its strategic vacant positions in the near future. The 

negative impact on the Authority as a result of these vacancies was huge and requires that the 
Authority moves with the necessary speed to ensure that there is no vacuum regarding the 
operations of the organisation as a result. Filling of these vacant critical positions will assist GAAL in 
achieving its objectives. 

A total five (5) interns were recruited and they assisted in GAAL's performance. 

A total number of eight (8) employees were charged with misconduct during the year under review 
and this affected the performance of GAAL. Limited human resources within GAAL made it 
impossible to implement fully its non-compliance training and development programs. 

a. Overview of Human Resources Matters of the Public Entity

The Human Resources Division is responsible for the following activities within the organisation: 

• Recruitment

• Training and development

• Performance management

• Remuneration and benefits administration

• Labour relations

• Employee wellness

• Occupational health and safety

• Employment equity

• Records management.

b. Employee Performance Management Framework

GAAL has implemented its Performance Management Framework but there is still room for 

improvement in terms of all employees embracing this performance management system. 

c. Employee Wellness Programme

No employee wellness programme was arranged during the year under review. 



d. Policy Development

A review of the Human Resources Policy was initiated but could not be concluded by the end of the 

financial year due to the fact that the consultation processes with the organised labour are still on

going. 

The Authority's Records Management Policy was also drafted but has not yet been approved due to 

the fact that a benchmarking process against similar policies adopted by other organisations is still 

on-going. 

e. Human Resource Management Achievements

• Despite having limited budget, GAAL managed to train employees on SACAA compliance

related courses.

• The implementation of the performance management system during the year under review

showed a tremendous improvement as compared to the previous year.

• GAAL continued to recruit interns to ensure that unemployed graduates gain experience.

• Most of the labour cases were finalised during the year under review.

• Three employees were given long service awards for staying with the organisation for a
period of five years.

• No major injury was reported but minor injuries to two employees were reported and
attended to satisfactorily.

f. Human Resources Challenges Faced by the Public Entity

The organisational structure does not support the strategy of the organisation. 

g. Future Human Resources Plans and Goals

• Partner with TET A with regard to training of both interns and current employees.
• Implement an employee wellness programme
• Initiate a teambuilding approach
• Foster our partnership with union leadership
• Implement training needs for all employees
• Initiate quarterly roadshows and innovative programmes for employees in the workplace
• Develop a Succession Planning Strategy.
• Labour relations training.
• Review of the Employment Equity Plan of the Authority.
• Partner with institutions of higher learning regarding learner ships.

• Fully implement performance rewards.

• Finalise the review of the organisational structure to assist in implementing GAAL's strategy.

• Finalise implementation of the Records Management System.



h. Occupational Health and Safety

A new committee for Health and Safety was appointed and GAAL continued to provide a safe working 

environment of all employees. No major injuries were reported during the year under review. 

1.9 HR PRIORITIES AND THEIR IMPACT 

HR PRIORITIES IMPACT 

Provide all divisions with necessary Assist GAAL in achieving the strategic 

human capital to perform daily tasks objectives 

Improve labour relations by continuous Promote harmony and employee satisfaction 

engagement with relevant stakeholders 

Training and development of employees Assist GAAL in achieving the strategic 

objectives 

1.10. Workforce planning framework and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and 
capable workforce 

The revised draft policies include strategies that GAAL will implement in order to attract and retain 

a skilled and capable workforce to assist the organisation to achieve its objectives. 

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS



Top Management 1,325,463 6% 1 1,325,463 

Senior Management 2,227,883 10% 1 2,227,883 

Professional qualified 2,018,970 9% 2 1,009,485 

Skilled 5,873,938 26% 14 419,567 

Semi-skilled 10,290,721 45% 36 285,853 

Unskilled 903,301 4% 6 150,550 

TOTAL R 22,640,277 100% 60 R 377,338 

The personnel costs include the costs of employees who terminated their services before the end of 

the year and the cost of acting allowances. 

Top Management 1,325,463 0% 

Senior Management 2,227,883 0% 

Professional qualified 2,018,970 0% 

Skilled 5,873,938 0% 

Semi-skilled 10,290,721 0% 

Unskilled 903,301 0% 

TOTAL 0 R 22,640,277 



Employment and Vacancies 
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Office of the CEO 2 

Office Company Secretary 2 

Corporate Affairs 0 

Operations 49 

Financial Management 5 

Human Resource Management 5 

Audit and Risk Management 1 

Project Management 0 

Internship 

Total 64 
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Top Management 1 1 

Senior Management 3 5 

Professional qualified 2 6 

Skilled 14 16 

Semi-skilled 39 41 

Unskilled 5 12 

TOTAL 64 81 

Top Management 1 0 

Senior Management 3 0 

Professional qualified 2 0 

Skilled 14 3 

Semi-skilled 39 0 

Unskilled 5 0 

Total 64 3 
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Death 1 14% 

Resi nation 2 29% 

Dismissal 3 43% 

Retirement 1 14% 

Ill health 0 0% 

Ex iry of contract 0 0% 

Other 0 0% 

Total 7 100% 

Verbal Warning 0 

Written Warning 0 

Final Written Warning 2 

Dismissal 3 

Disciplinary Action in Progress 2 

Resigned Before Conclusion of Hearing 1 

Total 8 

Equity Taq�et and Employment Equity Status 

MALE 

Levels 1\frican Coloured Indian White 

_ ____ _ _ _ _ Cu�cnt _ Target Current Target Current Target Current Target 

ioe._M�a�m:!lt _______ _ 
Senior Manage_m, _e_nt _______ _ 

1 -------- - -
2 

� - - -
0 

0 

0 

0 0 0 0 - -- -
0 0 0 2 

_,_ __ __ ,__ ______ ------ -- -
2 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 Professional qualified ___ _ ----- - ------------- -- -------- -- -- -- -

Skilled 7 7 0 2 0 2 0 1 

Semi-skilled - ---------------- 20 
_ >- _ 10

_ ,_ _ � _ _ 
2 

_ _!! _ _ 2 .!_ 1 
Unskilled 
TOTAL 

0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 

32 23 0 4 0 S 1 4 

-- - - -
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- -- - - -
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0 1 ------ ---- 0 --- - -�--� 
Senior Management ________ _ 0 1 0 1 0 1 --------- ------ -------- --Professional qualified ________ _ 0 3 0 1 0 1 

---------------- ------�--Skilled - ----
Semi-skilled - ----
Unskilled 
TOTAL 

6 5 0 3 0 2 ------- ---- - - - ----
15 19 0 0 0 ------- - -- -- --
6 4 0 0 0 

27 33 0 S 0 4 

0 0 

0 0 -- -- -
0 2 

0 2 

0 4 

0 8 



Top Management 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 

· Professional qualified 0 1 0 1 

Skilled 0 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 1 0 1 



PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

1. REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

This is the audit report as issued by the external auditor.



Report of the auditor-general to the Limpopo Provincial 

Legislature on Gateway Airport Authority Limited 

Report on the financial statements 

Introduction 

1. I was engaged to audit the financial statements of Gateway Airports Authority Limited set out on
pages 63 to 110, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting authority's responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the South African Statements
of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the
Companies Act of South Africa, 2008
(Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act) , and for such internal control as the accounting authority
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general's responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified audit opinion.



Basis for qualified opinion 

Property, plant and equipment 

6. The entity did not review the residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment at each
reporting date in accordance with IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment. As a result property, plant
and equipment with a gross carrying amount of R14 595 277, had a zero net carrying amount while
still being in use. I was unable to determine the impact on the net carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, as it was impracticable to do so. Additionally, there was a consequential impact on
the deficit for the period under review and on the accumulated surplus.

7. The entity did not perform an impairment assessment on all assets where there was an indication
that the assets might be impaired in accordance with ISA 36, Impairment of Assets. Consequently, I
was unable to determine whether any impairment adjustments to the property, plant and equipment
balance stated at R90 973 285
(2014: R99 014 357) in note 4 to the financial statements, were necessary. Additionally, there was a
consequential impact on the deficit for the period and on the accumulated surplus.

8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the restatement of the corresponding
figure for property, plant and equipment in the financial statements. As described in note 23 to the
financial statements, the restatement was made to rectify a prior year misstatement. However, the
restatement could not be substantiated by supporting audit evidence. I was unable to confirm the
restatement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment
to the property, plant and equipment corresponding figure stated at R99 014 357 in the financial
statements was necessary.

Revenue 

9. The entity did not recognise all revenue transactions relating to services rendered that could have
been estimated reliably as required by IAS 18, Revenue. I have identified revenue transactions
relating to flights arriving after hours which were not recognised in the accounting records of the
entity. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to aeronautical revenue
stated at R4 315 222 (2014: R3 163 177) were necessary. Additionally, there was a consequential
impact on the deficit for the period and on the accumulated surplus.

Cash and cash equivalents 

10. I identified a difference of R503 776 between the bank statement balance of R5 735 723 and the
cash and cash equivalents balance of R6 239 499 in the financial statements. I was unable to
perform alternative procedures on the unreconciled difference as the entity did not prepare bank
reconciliation at year-end. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment on cash
and cash equivalent was necessary.

Opinion 

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion 
paragraphs, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Gateway Airport Authority Limited as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended, in accordance with the SA Statements of GAAP and the requirements of the PFMA 
and Companies Act. 



Emphasis of matters 

11. I draw attention to the matters below.

Significant uncertainties 

12. With reference to note 21 to the financial statements, the entity is the defendant in various lawsuits
and pending legal cases from individuals and companies. The entity is opposing the claims
amounting to R3 147 694 (2014: R1 291 954) as it believes the claims to be unfounded and/or
fraudulent. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be determined and no provision for
any liability that may result has been made in the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure 

13. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R994 125 was incurred in
the current year and irregular expenditure from prior years of R 7 246 483 had not yet been resolved.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

14. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R1 244 573
for the current year and R886 045 from prior years had not yet been resolved.

Additional matters 

15. I draw attention to the matters below.

Unaudited supplementary schedules 

16. The supplementary information set out on pages 109 to 110 does not form part of the financial
statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and,
accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Other reports required by the Companies Act 

17. As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, I have read the
Directors' Report, and the Audit Committee's Report for the purpose of identifying whether there are
material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial statements. These reports
are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these reports I have not
identified material inconsistencies between the reports and the audited financial statements in
respect of which I have expressed a qualified of opinion. I have not audited the reports and
accordingly do not express an opinion on them

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

18. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)(PAA) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the



annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my 
tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or 
conclusion on these matters. 

Predetermined objectives 

19. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the following selected objectives presented in the annual performance
report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

Programme 1: Administrative on pages 22 to 24 

Programme 3: Operations on pages 26 to 32 

20. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and
reliability.

21. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was
presented in accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the
reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to
determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time
bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's Framework for managing programme
performance information (FMPPI).

22. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid,
accurate and complete.

23. The material findings in respect of the selected objectives are as follows:

Usefulness of reported performance information 

Programme 1: Administration 

24. Treasury Regulation (TR) 30.1.3(g) requires the annual performance plan to form the basis for the
annual report, therefore requiring consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between planning
and reporting documents. A total of 67% of the reported objectives were not consistent with those in
the approved corporate plan. This was due to the planned objectives not reported in the annual
performance report as the entity only reported overall objective instead of individual objective per
sub-programme.

25. Section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA requires actual achievements against all planned objectives to be
reported annually. The annual performance report submitted for audit purposes did not include the
actual performance of all planned objectives specified in the annual performance plan for the year
under review. This was due to lack of monitoring of the completeness of reporting documents by
management.



Programme 3: Operations 

26. The period or deadline for delivery of targets should be specified as required by the FMPPI.
Significantly important targets in relation to the operations of the entity were not time bound

Reliability of reported performance information 

27. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store
performance information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements
against planned objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly important targets were not reliable
when compared to the source information or evidence provided. This was due to a lack of standard
operating procedures and lack of monitoring of the completeness of source documentation in support
of actual achievements as well as lack of frequent review of the validity of reported achievements
against source documentation.

Additional matters 

28. I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets 

29. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 22 to 23 and 26 to 32 for information on the
achievement of the planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the
context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information for the selected programmes reported in paragraphs of this report.

Compliance with legislation 

30. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable
legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings
on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice
issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Strategic planning and performance management 

31. A corporate plan was not submitted in the prescribed format to the provincial treasury and the
accounting officer of the department of Roads and Transport as required by section 52(b) of the
PFMA and TR 29.2.

32. Procedures for quarterly reporting to the Executive Authority and the facilitation of effective
performance monitoring, evaluation and corrective action were not established as required by TR
29.3.1 and 30.2.1

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports 

33. Particulars of the strategic objectives and outcomes as identified and agreed on by the MEC, the key



performance measures and indicators for assessing performance in delivering the desired outcomes 
and objectives and the actual performance against the strategic objectives and outcomes, were not 
disclosed in the annual report as required by section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA read with TR 28.2.2. 

34. Effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk management and internal controls with respect to
performance information and management was not maintained as required by section 51 (1 )(a)(i) of
the PFMA.

35. The accounting authority did not submit the financial statements for auditing within two months after
the end of financial year, as required by section 55(1 )(c)(i) of the PFMA.

36. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not supported by full and proper records as
required by section 55(1 )(a) of the PFMA and section 29(1 )(a) of the Companies Act.

37. Material misstatements of non-current assets, current assets, liabilities, expenditure and disclosure
items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected,
but the uncorrected material misstatements and/ or supporting records that could not be provided
resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.

Audit committees 

38. Audit committee vacancies were not filled by the accounting authority within 40 days, as required by
section 94(6) of the Companies Act.

39. The audit committee did not review the effectiveness of the internal audit function, coordination
between the internal audit function and the external auditors, responses from management to
specific recommendations, risk areas of the entity's operations covered in the scope of internal and
external audits, effectiveness of the internal control systems and accounting and auditing concerns
identified as a result of internal and external audits, as required by TR 27.1.8(a) (b) (c) (e) (g).

Internal audit 

40. Internal audit was not under the control and direction of the audit committee, as required by section
51 (1) (a)(ii) of the PFMA.

Procurement and contract management 

41. Quotations were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters had not been declared by the South
African Revenue Services to be in order as required by the Preferential Procurement Regulation 14.

42. Thresholds for local content on designated sectors procurement were not properly applied in
accordance with the requirements of Preferential procurement regulation 9.

43. The preference point system was not applied in some procurement of goods and services above
R30 OOO as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000
(Act No 5 of 2000) (PFFFA) and TR 16A6.3 (b).



Expenditure management 

44. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure, as required by section 51 (1 )(b)(ii) of the PFMA

45. The accounting records for expenditure was not complete and/ or accurate, as required by section
28(1) of the Companies Act and Companies regulation 25(3)(c).

Revenue management 

46. The accounting records for revenue was not complete, as required by section 28 of the Companies
Act and Companies regulation 25(3) (c).

Human resource management 

47. Funded vacant posts were not filled within 12 months as required by Public Service Regulation
1NII/C.1A.2.

48. All senior managers did not have signed performance agreements for the year under review as required
by Public Service Regulation 4/11118.1.

49. A human resource plan was not in place as required by Public Service Regulation 1/11//B.2 (d).

Asset management and liability management 

50. The accounting records of the company's liabilities and obligations were not complete and accurate,
as required by section 28(1) of the Companies Act and Companies Regulation 25(3)(a)(iii).

51. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by
sections 50( 1 )(a) and 51 ( 1 )( c) of the PFMA.

Consequence management 

52. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who incurred and/or
permitted irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section
51 (1 )(e)(iii) of the PFMA.

Internal control 

53. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance
report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified opinion, the findings on the annual
performance report and the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.



Leadership 

54. Oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance reporting and compliance and related
internal controls was not exercised.

55. The accounting authority did not fill in key posts in finance to ensure that the unit is adequately
skilled and that experienced personnel are in place. The entity did not have a permanent CFO and
finance manager during the reporting period

56. There was no detailed review of the financial statements and the annual performance report,
resulting in several misstatements not identified in the preparation of the financial statements.

Financial and performance management 

57. The financial statements and other information to be included in the annual report are not reviewed
for accuracy and completeness by the accounting authority

58. There is no proper record keeping to support the financial statements and the annual performance
report, consequently requested information was not submitted

59. The entity did not perform monthly reconciliations for bank, trade receivables and trade payables

Governance 

60. The audit committee was not functioning for 1 November 2014 to 31 March 2015 and the previous
committee did not approve the internal audit reports and quarterly management reports

61. Internal audit did not review the effectiveness of the internal controls of the entity

21 August2015 
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval 

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records 

and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information 

included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of 

affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 

period then ended, in conformity with SA GAAP Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an 

independent opinion on the financial statements. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 

opinion on the Annual Financial Statements. 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with SA GAAP Standards and are based upon appropriate 

accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control 

established by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To 

enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control 

aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation 

of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation 

of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the company and all 

employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company's business is 

conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in 

the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the company. 

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 

predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the 

system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 

preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only 

reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

The director has reviewed the company's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2016 and, in the light of this 

review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the company has or has access to adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

The Auditor General is responsible for independent reporting on the company's financial statements. The 

financial statements have been examined by the company's external auditors. 

The financial statements and additional schedules set out on pages 4 to 38, which have been prepared on the 

going concern basis, were approved by the shareholder on 19/08/2015 and were signed on its 

behalf by: 

Mr TS Zulu 

Chief Executive 

19/08/2015 

L 



Directors' Report 

The interim accounting authority submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2015. 

1. Incorporation

The company was incorporated in South Africa on 01 March 1995 and obtained its certificate to

commence business on the same day.

2. Review of activities

Main business and operations

The company is engaged in the provision and maintenance of services and infrastructure of the Polokwane

International Airport and operates principally in South Africa.

The entity operates as a schedule 30 public entity, as set out in the Public Finance Management Act.

Business address 

3. Going concern

Polokwane International Airport 

Landros Mare Street 

Polokwane 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going

concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the

realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the

ordinary course of business.

4. Events after the reporting period

The entity did not have a constituted board of directors at the end of the financial year since their term

ended before year end and new board was not appointed by year end. The entity received a secondment

of an Acting Chief Financial Officer from Provincial Treasury. The date of the secondment was from 01 May

2015 to 30 June 2015. The entity has appointed a new CFO with effect from 01 July 2015.

5. Taxation

The company is exempt from tax in terms of Section 10(1) (cN) of the income Tax Act.

6. Authorised and issued share capital

There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the company during the year under

review.

7. Dividends

No dividends were declared or paid to shareholder during the year.



8. Secretary

The company secretary during the year under review was Mr. Reuben Mukhavhuli.

9. Auditors

The Auditor-General South Africa will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies

Act, 71 of 2008 and Section 4 of Public Audit Act.



Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 

2015 Restated 2013 
2014 

Note(s) R R R 

Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Investment property 3 25,998,000 25,998,000 25,998,000 

Property, plant and equipment 4 90,973,285 99,014,357 109,343,342 

427
1
124 544

1
947 

Intangible assets 5 117,398,409 125,557,304 135,341,342 

Current Assets 

Trade and other receivables 8 7,740,846 13,299,572 16,949,828 

Cash and cash equivalents 9 6,239,499 6,384,145 15,709,139 

13,980,345 19,683,717 32,658,967 

Total Assets 131
1
378z754 145

1
241

1
021 168

1
000

1
309 

Equity and Liabilities 

Equity 

Share capital 10 12 12 12 

82
1
864

1
872 95

1
258

1
687 112

1
321

1
966 

Retained income 82,864,884 95,258,699 112,321,978 

Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 12 52,722 111,352 

Deferred grant income 6 35,203,124 40,410,176 46,921,841 

Long service award liability 14 358,534 82,569 117,975 

35,614,380 40,604,097 47,039,816 

Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 12 58,629 63,629 

Trade and other payables 15 3,911,577 1,037,553 1,811,728 

Deferred grant income 6 5,518,780 5,830,506 5,149,348 

Provisions 11 3,410,504 2,446,537 1,677,439 

12
1
899,490 9,378

1
225 8,638,515 

Total Liabilities 48,513,870 49,982,322 55
1
678

1
331 

Total Equity and Liabilities 131
1
378

1
754 145

1
241

1
021 168

1
000

1
309 



Statement of Comprehensive Income 

2015 2014 
Notes R R 

Revenue 16 7,145,764 6,436,178 

Other income 17 40,606,499 32,146,296 
Operating expenses 18 {59

!
418

!
140) {55

!
567

!
147) 

Operating deficit (11,665,877) (16,984,673) 

Investment revenue 19 208,142 255,150 

Finance costs {936
!
080) {333

!
757) 

Deficit for the year {12,393,815) {17
!
063,280) 

Total comprehensive deficit for the year {1213931
815) {171

063
1
280) 



Statement of Changes in Equity 

Opening balance as previously reported 

Adjustments 

Prior period error 

Balance at 01 April 2013 as restated 

Deficit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Deficit for the year 

Balance at 01 April 2014 

Deficit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive deficit for the year 

Balance at 31 March 2015 

Note(s) 

Share capital Retained Total equity income 

R R R 

12 151,666,245 151,666,257 

(39,344,279) (39,344,279) 

12 112,321,966 112,321,978 

(17,063,280) (17,063,280) 

(17,063,280) (17,063,280) 

12 95,258,686 95,258,698 

(12,393,815) (12,393,815) 

(12,393,815) (12,393,815) 

12 82,864,871 82,864,883 

10 



Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash receipts from customers 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees 

Cash generated/used in operations 

Interest income 

Finance costs 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Purchase of other intangible assets 

Net cash from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance lease payments 

Total cash, cash equivalents movement for the year 

Cash, cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Total cash, cash equivalents at end of the year 

Notes 

20 

4 

5 

9 

2015 

R 

46,950,502 

(42,476,620) 

4,473,882 

208,142 

(936,080) 

3,745,944 

(3,817,175) 

(9,785) 

(3,826,960) 

(63,630) 

(144,646) 

6,384,145 

6,239,499 

2014 

R 

38,582,474 

(46,656,939) 

(8,074,465) 

255,150 

(333,757) 

(8, 153,072) 

(1,171,922) 

(1,171,922) 

(9,324,994) 

15,709,139 

6,384,145 



1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with SA GAAP Standards, and the Companies Act, 

71 of 2008. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the 

measurement of investment properties and certain financial instruments at fair value, and incorporate the 

principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands which is the company's 

functional currency. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 Investment property 

Investment property is property held either to earn rental or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for 

sale in the ordinary course of business or use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 

administrative purposes. 

Investment property is stated at fair value. 

Investment property is valued once every three years using the net current replacement valuation method.The 

fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, or location 

or condition of the specific assets. 

Any gain or loss arising from the change in fair value is recognised in profit and loss in the period to which it 

relates. 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self

constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour costs and any other costs attributable to 

bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of plant and equipment. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of 

property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying 

amount of the item of plant and equipment and are recognized within "other income" in the profit or loss. 

Subsequent measurement 

The cost of replacing part of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item 

if it is probable that the future economic benefit embodied within the part will flow to the company and its 



cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The cost of the day 

to day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in profit and loss as incurred. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of 

an item of plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the 

useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 

Land is not depreciated. 



1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

(continued) The estimated useful lives are as 

follows: 

Item 

Buildings 

Furniture and fittings 

Plant and machinery 

Runway lights and air traffic equipment 

Motor vehicles 

Office equipment 

Electronic equipment 

Computer equipment 

Ground handling equipment 

Average useful life (Years) 

20 

6 

4-10

5 

4 

3-6

2-15

3 

5-6

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reclassification of investment property 

Property that is being constructed for future use as an investment property is accounted for as property, plant 

and equipment until construction or development is complete, at which time it is reclassified as investment 

property. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is 

incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 

recognised when: 

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 

there is an ability to use or sell it. 

it will generate probable future economic benefits. 

there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use 

or sell the asset. 

the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 



Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no 

foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is 

not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 

indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight 

line basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an 

indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining 

carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 

recognised as intangible assets. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis. 



Classification 

The company classifies financial instruments, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or 

an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement: 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the company's statement of financial performance 

when the entity becomes party to the contractual provision of the instrument. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value except for equity investments for which a fair value 

is not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available for sale financial assets. 

The company does not off-set a financial asset and a financial liability unless a legally enforceable right to set 

off the recognised amounts currently exists; and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Fair value methods and assumptions 

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not 

active (and for unlisted securities), the entity establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These 

include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the 

same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and 

relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. 

The effective interest rate method 

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 

and of allocating the interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the 

rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 

financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial 

instruments. 

Non - derivative financial instrument 

For financial instruments not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the 

initial measurement of the instrument. 

Amortized cost 

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument is measured at initial recognition minus 

principle repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any 



difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or 

un-collectibility. 

Measurement 

Initial measurement 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, plus in the case of financial instruments not at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 

financial instruments. Where the effect of any extended payment terms is not material no adjustments are 

made. The fair value of financial instruments is normally the transaction price, but may be affected by other 

factors which the entity takes into account when measuring fair value. Regular way purchases or sales are 

recognised using trade date accounting. All other financial instruments are recognised when the entity 

becomes a party to the contract. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: 

i. Loans and receivables

ii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss- (designated and held for

trading)

iii. Financial assets held to maturity

iv. Available for sale financial assets.

Financial assets for which a reliable fair value cannot practically be determined are carried at cost. 

Trade and other receivables 

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method less any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised in the income statement by applying the 

effective interest rate. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of 

the loss is recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it 

is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 

previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss. 

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 



Trade and other payables 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 

the effective interest rate method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are 

readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Where term deposits exceed three months, they are classified under another class of financial instruments, 

depending on the nature. Cash and cash equivalents are subsequently recorded at fair value which always 

approximates face value. 

Impairment 

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the 

individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is 

increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would 

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior 

years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Financial assets 

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that 

it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more 

events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. 

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will 

enter bankruptcy and default of payments are also considered indicators of impairment. 

An impairment loss in respect to a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 

between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the 

original effective interest rate. 



Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 

financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. 

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 

impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in 

profit or loss. 

Non - financial assets 

The carrying amount of the company's non-financial assets is reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets' recoverable 

amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the 

loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is revered if there has been a change in the 

estimate used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 

the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

Held to maturity 

Held to maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity 

dates that the entity has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity investments are 

subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. Interest 

income is recognised in the income statement by applying the effective interest rate. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories: 

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss

ii. Financial liabilities held at amortised cost



Financial liabilities held at amortised cost 

Trade and other payables are included in financial liabilities held at amortised cost. 

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method. An interest expense is recognised in the income statement by applying the effective interest rate. 

De-recognition 

The entity derecognises a financial asset when and only when: 

The rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire; or 

It transfers the financial assets and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition. 

The entity transfers a financial asset if, and only if, it either 

Transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset; or - Retains the 

contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset. 

The entity removes a financial liability from its balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished. 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership. 

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the entity assesses the classification of each 

element separately. 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term 

of the lease. The difference between the amount recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are 

recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 



1.5 Leases (continued) 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair 

value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The 

corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease 

obligation. 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership. 

At the commencement of the lease term, lessees shall recognise assets acquired under finance leases as assets 

and the associated lease obligations as liabilities in their statement of financial position. The assets and 

liabilities shall be recognised at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present 

value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The discount rate to be 

used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if 

this is practicable to determine; if not, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate shall be used. Any initial direct 

costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. 

Minimum lease payments shall be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the 

outstanding liability. The finance charge shall be allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 

produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents shall be 

charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term 

of the lease. The difference between the amount recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are 

recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

1.6 Share capital and equity 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs are directly attributable to the issue of ordinary 

shares. 

1. 7 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of all short term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders 

the related service and is not discounted. 



The accrual for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual leave represent the amount which the 

company has a present obligation to pay as a result of employees' services provided to the statement of 

financial position date. The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current wage 

and salary rates. 

Company policy entails the following: 

Actual leave entitlement afforded to employees by the Company is 21 and 24 working days leave per 

annum for employees on 5 and 6 working days per week respectively and leave entitlement in terms 

of timing and duration is within the confines of the statute. 

Annual leave may only be accumulated to a total amount of 40 working days leave where after any 

excess leave will be forfeited. 

Statutory annual leave may not be paid out at any stage other than on termination of employment 

for whatever reason and such leave payout shall be an entitlement if the employee has been in 

service for longer than 4 months and works for more than 4 days in a week. 

The annual leave accrued in excess of the mandatory leave shall not exceed a total of 40 days and 

hence payment on termination shall be a maximum of 40 days. 

1.8 Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined 

contribution plans where the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined 

contribution retirement benefit plan. 

The entity operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are held in a separate trustee 

administered fund. The pension fund is funded by payments from the entity. The entity's contributions to the 

defined contribution plan are charged to the statement of financial performance in the year to which they 

relate. 

For defined contribution plans, the entity pays contributions to publicly and private administrated pension 

insurance plans on a contractual basis. Once the contributions have been paid, the entity has no further 

payment obligations. The regular contributions constitute net periodic costs for the year in which they are 

due, as such are included in staff costs. The accruals for employee entitlements to wages, salaries, annual and 

sick leave represent the amount that the entity has a present obligation to pay as a result of employees' 

services provided up to the reporting date. The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based 

on current wage and salary rates. 

1.9 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 

the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation; and 

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 



The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 

obligation. The entity uses a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money 

and the risks for which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted. The entity does not discount the 

liability where the time value of money is not material. 

1.9 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

Contingent liabilities: 

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 

of the entity; or 

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: 

i. it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation; or

ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets: 

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 

wholly within the control of the entity. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in the notes to the 

annual financial statement. 

1.10 Government grants 

The Entity receives Grants from Limpopo Department of Transport for infrastructure development and 

operational costs. Grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 

entity recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. 

Grants in recognition of specific expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the same period as the relevant 

expenses. Similarly, grants related to depreciable assets are recognized in profit or loss over the periods and in 

the proportions in which depreciation expense on those assets is recognized. 

Grants utilized in the acquisition of non-depreciable assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in 

the period in which expenditure is incurred. 

1.11 Revenue 

Revenue is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 

buyer, recovery of consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Aeronautical revenue 

Aeronautical revenue consists of the following: 

Landing fees: Landing fees for non-scheduled charter flights are determined by using regulated tariffs 

for the aircraft landing based on the maximum take-off weight of landing aircraft for each landing. 



Landing fees for scheduled flights are based on agreed fees between the Airport and the flight 

company. 

Passenger service charges: Passenger service charges for non-scheduled flights are based on the 

regulated tariffs for each departing passenger at an airport of departure, 

Passenger service charges for scheduled flights are based on agreed fees between the Airport and 

the flight company. 

Aircraft parking: Aircraft parking fees are determined by using regulated tariffs for each aircraft 

parked for over an hour based on the maximum take-off weight of aircraft parking per 24-hour 

period. 

Baggage handling: Baggage handling fees are determined by using regulated tariffs per each baggage 

based on the maximum take-off weight for each baggage. 

Non- Aeronautical revenue 

Non-aeronautical revenue consists of the following: 

Rental Income: Revenue is generated through the rental of offices, parking fees, aviation fuel depots 

and long-term rental agreements on investment properties. 

1.11 Revenue (continued) 

Interest on Term Deposits: Interest on term deposits is recognised on a time apportionment basis, 

taking account of the principle amount outstanding and the effective rate over the period to 

maturity, when it is probable that such income will accrue to the company. 

Conference revenue: Conference revenue is based on a predetermined usage rate per day of usage 

over the maximum number of days used. 

1.12 Related parties 

GAAL's related parties include entities directly or indirectly owned by the Limpopo Department ofTransport. 

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 

and controlling the activities of the entity. The entity regards all individuals from the level of General Manager 

up to the Board of Directors as key management per the definition of the standard. 

Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be 

expected to influence, or be influenced by key management individuals in their dealings with the entity. 

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the standard. The objective 

of the standard and the financial statements is to provide relevant and reliable information and therefore 

materiality is considered in the disclosure of these transactions. 

1.13 Commitments 

Commitment arises when a decision is made to incur a liability. Such a decision is evidenced by, but not limited 

to, actions taken to determine the amount of the eventual resource outflow or a reliable estimate and conditions 

to be satisfied to establish an obligation. 



Commitments are not recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, but disclosed in the notes to 

the financial statements. A commitment becomes a liability generally when the intention becomes a present 

obligation. 

1.14 Financial risk management 

The entity recognises that an effective risk management function is fundamental to its business. Taking 

international best practice into account, our comprehensive risk management process involves identifying, 

understanding and managing the risks associated with each of GAAL's businesses units. 

1.14.1 Financial risk management (continued) 

The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the entity as a result of the failure by a customer or counterparty to meet its 

contractual obligations. Credit risk also includes cash deposits and cash equivalents. The entity only deposits 

cash with banks approved by national treasury. The credit risk that GAAL faces arises mainly from commercial 

and aeronautical business. These risks are mitigated by the guarantees held for the exposure at a given period, 

where applicable. Credit risks can also arise from cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and 

derivative financial instruments. 

Trade and other receivables 

The entity's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 

demographics of the entity's customer base, including the default rate of the industry and country in which 

customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. 

The entity establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of 

trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance is a specific loss component that relates 

to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss established for similar assets in respect of losses that 

have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data 

of payment statistics for similar financial assets. Customers that fail to meet the entity's benchmark 

creditworthiness may transact with the entity only on a prepayment/cash basis. More than 60% of the entity's 

customers have been transacting with the entity for over 3 years, and losses have occurred infrequently. In 

monitoring customer credit risk, customers are classified according to their credit characteristics, including 

whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are aeronautical, commercial or retail customer, 

geographic location, industry, aging profile, maturity and existence of previous financial difficulties. 

Trade and other receivables relate mainly to the entity's aeronautical and commercial customers. Customers 

that are graded as "high risk" are placed on a restricted customer list, and future transactions are made on 

prepayment basis with approval based on the Treasury Regulations. 



Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that GAAL's earnings or capital, or its ability to meet business objectives, will be 

adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign 

exchange rates or commodity prices. The main market risk arises from treasury activities and both 

aeronautical and non-aeronautical business. 

The entity has developed analytical tools that are used to perform various analyses in order to assess the 

impact of market risk on business and to identify mitigants to manage the risk within approved tolerance 

levels. 

Tariff risk 

The entity has no regulatory strategy which seeks to proactively influence the regulatory approach in line with 

best practice. In this regard, the entity does not actively manage the economic regulatory risk. 

Liquidity and funding risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to generate sufficient cash to honour financial commitments. In GAAL 

it refers particularly to the risk of GAAL not being able to advance funds for capital expenditure, finance 

operational costs and service unanticipated financial commitments. 

1.14.2 Financial risk management ( continued) 

The entity's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the entity's reputation. The entity therefore places its funds in short 

term deposits that are readily available. 

1.15 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, 

incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, 

including (a) this Act; or 

(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the 

PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008): 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was 

condoned before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded 

appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is required with the 

exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 



Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which 

condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further 

action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following 

financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the 

amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not 

condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular 

expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account 

must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the 

amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority 

may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial 

statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure 

has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against 

the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and 

updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

1.16 Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 

- overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and

- expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance

with the purpose of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with 

the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement 

of financial performance. 

Going concern (continued) 

1.17 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was in vain and would have been avoided had 

reasonable care been exercised. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance 

according to the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement. If the 

expenditure is recoverable, it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written 

off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance. 



1.18 Going concern 

These financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the entity will continue to operate as a going 

concern for the foreseeable future. The entity has a number of plans for generating its revenue. The bulk of 

the entity's revenue is tied in the land ownership challenge for the entity. The land where the entity operates 

is owned by the National Department of Public Works and plans are in progress for the land to be handed over 

to GAAL to unlock commercial development opportunities. The entity also owns number of hangers on the 

airside and has received interest from service providers to rent out facilities to them. The entity also has a plan 

to attract other scheduled regional and domestic airlines to consider the Airport as their destination of choice. 

The Department of Transport has approved a total grant of R43,2 million for the 2015/16 financial year. 

1.19 Rounding 

Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest Rand 



2. Risk management

Liquidity risk 

2015 

R 

2014 

R 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and 

excluding the impact of netting agreements. 

At 31 March 2015 

Trade and other payables 

Long service award 

At 31 March 2014 

Trade and other payables 

Long service award 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

Carrying 

amount 

1,037,553 

82,569 

Carrying 0 -12 

amount Months 

3,911,577 3,911,577 

358,534 358,534 

Contractual 0-12

cash flows Months 

1,037,553 

82,569 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on financial exposure to interest rates at the 

reporting date. For floating rate instruments, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the instrument 

outstanding at the reporting date for the whole period and that all other variables remain constant in the 

sensitivity calculation. 

The basis point increase or decrease, as detailed in the table below, was determined by management and 

represent management's assessment of the reasonable possible change in interest rates. 

A positive number below indicates an increase in surplus, while a negative indicate the opposite. 

The sensitivity analysis shows reasonable expected changes in the interest rate, either an increase or decrease 

in interest%. The equal but opposite % adjustment to the interest rate would result in an equal but opposite 

effect on surplus. 

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the entities interest bearing financial instruments was: 

Cash and cash equivalents (upward change 1%) 

Cash and cash equivalents (downward change 1%) 

Credit risk 

Exposure to credit risk 

62,395 

62,395 

63,841 

63,841 

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 

credit risk at the reporting date was: 



Gateway Airport Authority Limited (GAAL) 
(Registration number 1995/002792/06) 
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Financial instrument 
Trade receivables 

VAT receivable 

Other receivable 

2. Risk management (continued)
Net carrying amount of trade
receivables
Trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 
31- 90 days

>90 days

Subtotal 

The ageing of these receivables is as follows: 

1 to 3 months 

3 to 6 months 

6 to 9 months 

Subtotal 

Reconciliations of doubtful debts 

Opening Balance 

Doubtful debts written off against provision 

Increase/ (reversal) of provision 

3. Investment property

2015 

R 

695,579 

5,914,330 

1,098,022 

2,693,426 

(1,997.847) 
695,579 

31-90 days
64,270

631,309

695,579

695,579

64,270 

631,309 

695,579 

695,579 

1,510,599 

(98,237) 

585,485 

1,997,847 

2014 

R 

1,516,185 

10,062,344 

1,721,043 

3,026,784 

(1,510.599) 
1,516,185 

>90 days
31,148 

1,485,037 

1,516,185 

1,516,185 

31,148 

1,485,037 

1,516,185 

1,516,185 

1,930,963 

(420,365) 

1,510,598 



3. Investment property

2015 2014 

Cost I Accumulated Carrying Cost I Accumulated Carrying 

Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value 

Investment property 25,998,000 25,998,000 25,998,000 25,998,000 

The entity does not own land on which the Airport is situated, the land belongs to and is registered in the 

name of the National Department of Public Works. The entity has the right to use the land on which the 

Airport is situated for as long as the entity renders aeronautical services. The entity is responsible for all the 

infrastructure developments and improvements made to the land. 

The investment property relates to properties located within Polokwane International Airport. 

Details of valuation 

The effective date of the revaluations was 31 March 2013. Revaluations were performed by an independent 

valuer, Mr MP Ntjie (Professional Associated Valuer), of A and Sons National Promulgator CC. A and Sons 

National Promulgator are not connected to the company and have recent experience in location and category 

of the investment property being valued. 

The valuation was based on open market value for existing use. 



4. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and 

machinery 

Furniture and 

fixtures 

Motor vehicles 

Office 

equipment 

Computer 

equipment 

Leased 

equipment 

Improvements 

on lease 

property 

Baggage 

handling 

equipment 

Runway lights 

and air traffic 

equipment 

Electric 

equipment 

Total 

Cost I
Valuation 

R 

1,882,127 

5,367,225 

15,069,176 

778,631 

1,883,088 

167,445 

114,997,135 

6,017,636 

7,962,129 

13,075,731 

167,200,323 

2015 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

R 

(933,521) 

(4,872,293) 

(14,246,600) 

(757,401) 

(1,506,095) 

(74,420) 

(31,405,607) 

(5,769,766) 

(7,502,993) 

(9,158,342) 

(76,227,038) 

Carrying 
value 

R 

948,606 

494,932 

822,576 

21,230 

376,993 

93,025 

83,591,528 

247,870 

459,136 

3,917,389 

90,973,285 

Cost I
Valuation 

R 

1,895,443 

5,367,225 

14,640,734 

774,172 

1,709,681 

167,445 

112,891,872 

6,017,636 

7,962,129 

11,986,986 

163,413,323 

2014 

Accumulated Carrying 
depreciation value 

R R 

(747,890) 1,147,553 

(4,398,766) 968,459 

(11,749,589) 2,891,145 

(716,567) 57,605 

(1,233,420) 476,261 

(18,605) 148,840 

(25,397,639) 87,494,233 

(4,720,442) 1,297,194 

(7,271,692) 690,437 

(8,144,356) 3,842,630 

(64,398,966) 99,014,357 



4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015 

Plant and equipment 

Furniture and fittings 

Motor vehicles 

Office equipment 
Computer equipment 

Leased equipment 
Improvements on lease property 
Baggage handling equipment 
Runway lights and air traffic equipment 

Electric equipment 

Opening Additions 
balance 

R R 

1,147,553 

968,459 

2,891,145 428,441 

57,605 4,809 
476,261 189,917 

148,840 

87,494,233 2,105,263 

1,297,194 
690,437 

3.842,63Q l,Q88.7�5 

2015 2014 
R R 

Depreciation Impairment 
loss 

Total 

R 

(188,652) (10,294) 948,607 

(473,527) 494,932 

(2,497,011) 822,575 

(40,918) (265) 21,231
(277,289) (11,660) 376,993

(55,815) 93,025 

(6,007,967) 83,591,528 

(1,049,324) 247,870 
(231,301) 459,136 

(l,Ql3,98Zl 3.9lZ.388 
99,014,357 3,817,175 (11,835,791) (22,219) 90,973,285 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014 

Opening 
balance 

Plant and equipment 
Furniture and fittings 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
Computer equipment 

Leased equipment 
Buildings 
Ground handling equipment 
Runway lights and air traffic equipment 
Electric equipment 

Other information 

R 
1,321,472 
1,516,577 
5,366,812 

124,577 
127,187 

93,138,826 
2,346,519 

426,013 
4,975,359 

109,343,342 

Additions Depreciation Total 

R R 
13,316 (187,235) 1,147,553 
10,742 (558,860) 968,459 

(2,475,667) 2,891,145 
350 (67,322) 57,605 

540,682 (191,608) 476,261 
167,445 (18,605) 148,840 

(5,644,594) 87,494,233 
(1,049,325) 1,297,194 

439,387 (174,963) 690,437 
(1,132,729) 3,842,630 

1,171,922 (11,500,908) 99,014,357 

Impairment was applied to assets with a carrying amount of R22 219. The assets were impaired to nil due to 

the deterioration in their condition. Management are of the view that these assets are not in a usable 

condition. 

5. Intangible assets



2015 

Cost I Accumulated Carrying 
Valuation amortisation value 

Computer software, 

other 

Computer software, other 

638,040 (210,916) 

6. Amortisation of deferred grant income

Opening balance

Grant received

Grant utilised for operating expenditure

Amortisation of grant

Less short term portion

Long term Portion - Deferred grant Income

427,124 

Cost I
Valuation 

628,255 

Cost I
Valuation 

2015 2014 
R R 

2014 

Accumulated Carrying 
amortisation value 

(83,308) 544,947 

2013 

Accumulated Carrying 
amortisation 

46,240,683 

35,087,719 

{35,087,719) 

(5,518,780) 

(5,518,780) 
35,203,123 

value 

52,071,190 

26,315,789 

{26,315,789) 

(5,830,507) 

(5,830.507) 
40,410,176 

The entity receives government grants from the Department of Transport to be utilised for infrastructure 

development as well as for operational purposes. 

7. Fruitless, wasteful and irregular expenditure

Opening balance

Add: Current year fruitless, wasteful and irregular

expenditure

Irregular expenditure 

Opening balance 

Add: Irregular expenditure current year 

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonment per age classification 

Opening balance 

Irregular expenditure current year 

To be recovered - contingent asset 

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement 

8. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 

Impairment of trade receivables 

886,045 

1,244,573 

2,130,618 

7,246,483 

994,125 
8,240,608 

7,246,483 

994,125 

8,240,608 

2,693,426 

(1,997,847) 

232,445 

653,600 

886,045 

5,630,204 

1,616.279 
7,246,483 

5,630,204 

1,616,279 

7,246.483 

3,026,784 

(1,510,599) 



Deposits 

Value Added Tax (VAT) 

Prepaid expenses 

2015 
R 

695,579 

41,371 

5,914,330 

1,089,566 
7,740,846 

2014 
R 

1,516,185 

10,062,344 

l.ZZl,043

13,299,572 

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value due to their short term 

maturity. 

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 

Bank balances 

Bank balances at call 

10. Share capital

Authorised 
1000 Ordinary shares of Rl each 

No changes in authorised share capital during the year. 

Reconciliation of number of shares issued: 
Reported as at 01 April 2014 

Issued 

12 Ordinary shares of Rl each 

43,605 

5,822,988 

3Z2,906 
6,239,499 

1,000 

12 

12 

2,400 

6,008,839 

3Z2,906 
6,384,145 

1,000 

12 

12 

The Limpopo Department of Transport has full rights on distribution and capital re-payments of shares. 

11. Provisions

Provision for leave

Provision for bonus

Provision for operating expenditure

479,283 

332,896 

2,598,325 
3,410,504 

427,661 

328,424 

1,690,452 
2,446,537 



12. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due 
- no later than one year

- later than one year and no later than five years

Present value of minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum lease payments due 

- no later than one year

- later than one year and no later than five years

2015 
R 

58,629 

52,722 

111,351 

58,629 

52,722 

111,351 

2014 
R 

63,629 

111,351 

174,980 

63,629 

111.351 

174,980 

The entity has a three year finance lease agreement with Palesa Technologies for 3 multi-purpose 

photocopiers. The leases have fixed repayment terms and the leased assets will not be transferred to the 

entity at the end of the lease term. Contingent rent is payable based on the number of copies done during a 

particular month. Total Contingent rent paid and recognised as an expense during the year amounted to R80 

378 (2014: R18 717). Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased asset. 



13. Deferred grant income

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

14. Long service award liability

Movement in the employee long term service award liability 

Opening liability 

Current service cost 

Interest 

Actuarial losses / (gains) recognised in statement of financial 

performance 

Benefits paid 

Current portion of liability as at 31 March 

Expense recognised in (profit) and loss 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Actuarial losses/(gains) 

Principal actuarial assumptions of valuation model used 

Discount rate as at 31 March (%) 

Future ex-gratia amount inflation rate per annum (%) 

Take up rate by employees 

Average retirement age: Females 

Average retirement age: Males 

Sensitivity analysis 
The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed discount rate is as follows: 

Effect on the defined benefit obligation 

Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and interest cost 

15. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 

Salary control account 

2015 
R 

35,203,124 

5.518,78Q 
40

1
721

1
904 

82,569 

7,861 

8,031 

260,073 

358
1
534 

358
1
534 

17,447 

2,605 

4.398 
24

1
450 

8.00% 

0.00% 

100% 

63 

60 

1,693,759 

(238,476) 

2014 
R 

40,410,176 

5.83Q,5QZ 
46

1
240

1
683 

117,975 

2,605 

4,398 

17,573 

(59,982) 

82
1
569 

82
1
569 

2,605 

4,398 

(42,409) 
{35

1
406) 

8.11% 

6.95% 

100% 

63 

60 

(5,617) 

88,186 

695,745 

(688,649) 



2015 2014 
R R 

Accrued expense 1,800,998 1,007,964 

Deposits held 8,000 8,000 

Other payables 647.296 14.493 

3,911,577 1,037,553 

16.Revenue

Aeronautical revenue 4,315,222 3,163,177 

Non-aeronautical revenue 2.830.542 3,273.001 

7,145,764 6,436,178 

17. Other income

Deferral on government grants 5,518,780 5,830,507 

Government grants 35.087.719 26.315,789 

40,606,499 32,146,296 



2015 2014 
R R 

18. Expenses by nature

Accommodation expense 206,386 109,966 

Administration expense 300 

Advertising and promotional costs 144,218 310,911 

Air traffic control 4,153,531 3,177,207 

Auditors remuneration 1,412,722 1,929,447 

Bad debts impairment provision 573,421 (420,365) 

Bank charges 33,738 55,840 

Bursaries 204,565 

Cleaning services 877,706 756,069 

Computer, consumable and software expenses 263 1,527 

Consulting and professional fees 905,353 161,342 

Courier services and postage 2,408 310 

Depreciation 11,963,399 11,584,216 

Director's emoluments 1,223,415 685,959 

Employee costs 23,855,652 21,076,035 

Entertainment 196 95 

Fuel and lubrications 249,876 363,955 

IT expenses 1,194,041 581,269 

Impairment 22,219 

Insurance 639,562 1,345,634 

Legal services 1,783,479 1,579,199 

License 67,144 300,026 

Magazines, books and periodicals 1,116 

Medical check-ups 8,596 1,316 

Membership fees 6,902 15,616 

Occupation health and wellness 716 69,022 

Placement fees 285,447 100,256 

Postage 596 

Printing and stationery 181,086 386,732 

Protective clothing 198,335 18,126 

Refreshments 31,048 138,356 

Rental of office equipment 182,702 53,603 

Repair and maintenance 2,264,667 2,602,990 

Security contract 2,774,640 2,327,047 

Software expenses 10,486 

Subscription fees 49,702 49,231 

Subsistence and travel 729,287 44,446 

Sundry expense 203,543 3,008,623 

Telephone 678,044 670,493 



2015 2014 
R R 

Training 324,418 165,505 

Water and electricity 2,178,896 1,382,316 

Total expenses 59,418,140 55,567,146 

19. Investment revenue

Interest revenue 
Bank 208,142 255,150 

20. Cash generated from operations
Deficit for year (12,393,815) (17,063,280) 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 11,963,399 11,584,216 

Interest received (208,142) (255,150) 

Finance costs 936,080 333,757 

Impairment loss 22,219 

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 275,965 35,406 

Movements in provisions 963,967 769,098 

Debt impairment 487,249 (420,365) 

Other non-cash items 238 (103,721) 

Deferred Income realised (S,518, 780) 

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 291,987 3,650,256 

Prepayments 631,477 

VAT 4,148,014 

Trade and other payables 2,080,990 (774,175) 

Deferred grant income 793.034 (5,830,507) 

4,473,882 {8,074,465) 



21. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments (Multi -year commitments) 

Capital expenditure approved and contracted 

Operating expenditure: 

Short term approved and contracted for 

Short term approved but not yetcontracted for 

Long Term approved and contracted for 

Commitments will be funded from existing funds and government grants received. 

Contingent liability: 

2015 
R 

8,928,983 

886,662 

10,512,616 

2014 
R 

2,400,000 

11,693,328 

19,698,797 

As at 31 March 2015 the entity is in litigation in the labour court and CCMA with former employees in respect of 

unfair dismissals. The entity is defending these matters. The total cost estimated by the Attorney's amounts to R3 

147 694. 

Contingent Assets: 

As at 31 March 2015, the entity instituted legal proceedings against Millionaires Club, one of the tenants 

occupying the entity's premises for non-payment of rentals. The court case is currently in progress and the 

entity is likely to receive R646 676 in unpaid rentals 

T.W Mogudi /GAAL Arbitration case No.LP9216-14. 662,915 

Employee was dismissed in 2014 and is taking GAAL

to CCMA. Employee alleges unfair dismissal.

NG Mabasa magistrates court case

number:2627 /2013.Ex-employee issued summons

alleging that GAAL never paid his tax over to SARS.

147,000 97,000 

S.G Mthombeni court case JJR2000/10 .Employee

suing GAAL and alleges unfair dismissal.

887,240 787,240 

V Musie Labour court case 

number:JR2800/12.Dismissal in relation to misconduct. 

Employee alleges unfair dismissal. 

S Mahanyele Labour court case 

number:J1322/2014.Charges were brought against the 

employee.The matter was refered to the CCMA. The 

employee approached the Labour. 

Khamba communications: Dispute relating to the 

billboard erected by Khamba. 

406,267 306,267 

279,157 

515,115 



Matlala Disciplinary hearing. The matter was finalised 

and the amount disclosed as a contigency relates to 

legal fees. 

22. Related parties

Relationships 

Parent Department 

Shareholder with significant influence 

Dept of Home Affairs 

Dept of Health 

South African Police Services 

South African Revenue Services 

Limpopo Office of the Premier 

National Dept of Public Works 

Limpopo Dept of Transport 

Board Members 

The Board was appointed in November 2013 

(The term of the Board expired on 31 October 2014) 

Members of key management 

2015 
R 

250,000 

2014 
R 

101,447 

3,147,694 1,291,954 

Limpopo Department of Transport 

Limpopo Provincial Government and National 

Government 

Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal 

Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal 

Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal 

Office Space for no rental at the Airport Terminal 

Secondment of Acting CFO (R647 297) 

Right of use of land by GAAL 

Secondment of staff to assist in financial 

management at GAAL 

Dr. M Neluheni 

Dr HN Manzini 

TA Ramawa 

I Nkama 

MA Mahapa 

ns Zulu (Chief Executive Officer) 

W Mogudi (Senior Operations Manager) 

D Malesa (Human Resouces Manager) 

P Kobola (Acting Finance Manager) 

Mr R Mukhavhuli (Acting Company Secretary) 

Mr Netshifhefhe (Operations Manager) 

The entity is listed as a schedule 3D government business enterprise in terms of the Public Finance 

Management Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended) and therefore falls within the national sphere of government. It is 

100% controlled by its parent department which is the Limpopo Department of Transport. The related parties of 

GAAL consist mainly of government departments, as well as key management personnel of GAAL and close 

family members of related parties. GAAL receives grants from the Department of Transport for infrastructure 

development and operational costs. 

Government grant 

Department of Transport 40,000,000 30,000,000 



Director's remuneration 

Non Executive Directors 

Executive Directors 

2015 
Non-executive directors 

Dr. M Neluheni 

Dr HN Manzini 

TA Ramawa 

I Nkama 

MA Mahapa 

22. Related parties (continued)

2014
Non-executive directors

Dr. M Neluheni

Dr HN Manzini
TA Ramawa

I Nkama

MS Mahapa
T Peege

2015 
Executive Management 

ns Zulu {Chief Executive Officer) 

W Mogudi (Senior Operations 

Manager) 

D Malesa {Human Resouces 

Manager) 

P Kobola (Acting Finance 

Manager) 
Mr R Mukhavhuli {Acting 

Company Secretary) 

Mr Netshifhefhe {Operations 

Manager) 

Salaries 

920,977 

448,013 

758,238 

471,315 

473,526 

31072,069

Sitting 

40,800 

12,000 

37,000 
25,000 

2Z,QQQ 
1411800

2015 
R 

995,755 

4,612,428 
516081183

Retainer fees 

353,363 

121,692 

135,516 
121,692 

121.692 
853

1
955 

Sitting Retainer fees Subsistence 
and travel 

18,000 117,788 27,841 

9,800 40,564 8,349 

20,000 45,172 11,908 

20,000 40,564 8,335 

12,000 40,564 8,611 

31,6QQ 
791800 284

1
652 96

1
644 

Other Subsistence Termination 

payments and travel Payment 

97,973 105,883 

74,906 64,000 33,319 

97,583 60,330 

281,464 18,400 

308,786 

397,715 

11258
1
427 2481613 33,319 

2014 
R 

461,096 

4,Z4Q,899 
512011995

Total 

394,163 

133,692 
172,516 
146,692 

148.692 
995

1
755 

Total 

163,629 

58,713 

77,080 

68,899 
61,175 

31.6QQ 
461,096 

Total 

1,124,833 

620,238 

916,151 

771,179 

308,786 

871,241 

4,612,428 



2014 Salaries Other Subsistence 

Executive management payments and travel 

ns Zulu (Chief Executive 990,596 152,134 103,399 
Officer) 
S Mahanyele (Finance Manager) 601,517 116,154 50,000 
W Mogudi 703,604 133,114 96,320 
M Malesa (Human Resources 673,882 106,640 60,240 
Manager) 
P Kobola (Acting Finance 515,731 257,499 18,160 
Manager) 
Mr R Mukhavhuli (Acting 117,877 
Company Secretary) 

314851330 8831418 3281119 

23. Prior period errors and restatement of comparative information

Property, plant and equipment 

2015 2014 
R R 

Termination Total 

Payment 

1,246,129 

44,033 811,704 

933,038 
840,762 

791,390 

117,877 

441033 4z7401900 

During the year, the asset register used in the prior year was noted to have material and pervasive errors. The 

entity embarked on an exercise to revamp the whole asset register. The effect of the correction of this error on 

the financial statements is as follows: 

As previously reported at cost 
Accumulated depreciation as previously reported 
Elimination of carrying amount 
Revised asset register - verified assets at cost 

Revised accumulated depreciation 

Investment properties 

175,536,975 
(51,301,576) 

(124,235,399) 
163,413,323 

(64,398,966) 

9910141357 

The entity incorrectly classified items of property, plant and equipment as investment property. In terms of IAS 

par .10, where items are held for dual purpose, it is accounted for as investment property only if an 

insignificant portion is held for use in production or supply of goods or services for administration purposes. 

The effect of the correction of this error is as follows: 

As previously reported 
Effect of correction of prior period error 

Trade and other receivables 

31,750,363 

{5,752,363) 
2519981000 



2015 
R 

2014 
R 

The entity incorrectly treated prepayments in the accounting records. The entity did not also recognise rental 

income accrued to it for premises used by a tenant - Millionaires Club. The effect of the correction of this 

error on the financial statements is as follows: 

As previously reported 

Revenue recognised in incorrect accounting period 

Intangible asset 

27,171,825 

(12,361,654) 

14,810,171 

An error was discovered in the prior year regarding expenditure on certain software acquisitions which was not 

capitalised to intangible assets. The effect of the correction of this error on the financial statements is as follows: 

23. Prior period errors (continued)

As previously reported

Adjustment

Trade and other payables 

As previously reported 

Adjustments 

Operating expenses 

As previously stated 

Adjustments 

Differed grant income 

As previously reported 

Adjustment 

Revenue 

As previously reported 

Adjustments 

628,255 
628,255 

(2,462,349) 

(1,687,894) 
(4,150,243) 

48,517,487 

4,806,071 

53,323,558 

(46,921,841) 

681,158 

(46,240,683) 

(40,861,154) 

2,954,195 

(37,906,959) 



Retained Earnings: Movements in equity: 31 
March 2013 
Investment property 

Property, Plant & equipment - Cost 

Property, Plant & equipment - Accumulated 

depreciation 

Trade receivables 

Value added tax 

Trade and payables 

Provisions 

Cash and bank 

As previously reported 

Adjustment 

2015 2014 
R R 

{5,752,363) 

{12,123,652) 

{13,097,390) 

81,778 

{8,439,468) 

530,540 

{543,724) 

(39,344,279) 

6,023,555 

(14,716) 
6,008,839 



Detailed Income Statement 

Notes 

Revenue 

Aeronautical revenue 

Non-aeronautical revenue 

16 

Other income 

Deferral on government grants 14 

Interest received 19 

Government grants 14 

Expenses (Refer to page 38) 

Operating loss 

Finance costs 

Loss for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive loss for the year 

2015 2014 
R R 

2015 2014 

R R 

4,315,222 3,163,177 

2,830,542 3,273,001 

7,145,764 6,436,178 

5,518,780 5,830,507 

208,142 255,150 

35,087,719 26,315,789 

40,814,641 32,401,446 

(59,418,140) (55,567,147) 

(11,457,735) (16,729,523) 
(936,080) (333

1
757) 

(12,393,815) (17,063,280) 

(12
1
393

1
815) (17

1
063

1
280) 



2015 2014 
R R 

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is 

unaudited 37 - 19 August 2015 - 12:10 

Detailed Income Statement 

2015 2014 

Note{s) R R 

Operating expenses 

Accommodation expense (206,386} (109,966) 

Administration expense (300) 

Advertising and promotional items {144,218) (310,911) 

Air traffic control (4,153,531) (3,177,207) 

Audit fees {1,412,722) (1,929,447) 

Bad debt impairment provision (573,421) 420,365 

Bank charges {33,738) {55,840) 

Cleaning services (877,706} {756,069) 

Computer, consumable and software expenses (263) (1,527}

Consulting and professional fees (905,353) (161,342)

Courier services and postage (2,408) (310) 

Depreciation {11,963,399) (11,584,216} 

Director's emoluments {1,223,415} (685,959} 

Employee costs {23,855,652} {21,076,035) 

Entertainment {196) {95) 

Events Management (204,565) 

Fuel and lubrications (249,876) (363,955) 

IT expenses (1,194,041} {581,269) 

Impairment {22,219) 

Insurance {639,562) {1,345,634) 

Legal services {1,783,479) (1,579,199} 

Licenses (67,144} (300,026) 

Marketing costs {1,116) 
Medical checkups (8,596) (1,316) 
Membership fees (6,902) (15,616) 

Occupation health and wellness (716) (69,022)

Placement fees (285,447) {100,256)

Postage {596) 

Printing and stationery (181,086) (386,732) 

Refreshments (31,048) (138,356) 

Rental of office equipment (182,702} {53,603} 
Repairs and maintenance (2,264,667) (2,602,990) 



2015 
R 

Security contract (2,774,640) 

Software expenses (10,486) 

Subscription fees (49,702) 

Subsistence and travel (729,287) 

Sundry expense (203,543) 

Telephone (678,044) 

Training (324,418) 

Uniforms and protective clothing (198,335) 

Water and electricity (2,178,896) 

(59,418,140) 

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited 38 - 19 

August 2015 - 1 

2014 
R 

(2,327,047) 

(49,231) 

(44,446) 

(3,737,769) 

(670,493) 

(165,505) 

(18,126) 

(1,382,316) 

(55,567,147) 
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